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Financial Highlights

BE-_ZT—-\F=ZA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017 Change

EBEWEEEToL) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$’000)
& Revenue 1,667,879 1,450,877 15%
Fr B4 A 5 Profit before tax 129,143 78,759 64%
KABERZA A Profit attributable to equity holders of

FEAE 3 A the Company 101,877 51,485 98%
BERE Total assets 3,695,700 3,315,085 11%
A& SR Shareholders’ funds 2,867,827 2,589,923 11%
BTN Issued share capital 63,053 63,053 0%
mMEEEFE Net current assets 1,675,542 1,518,680 10%
SREE PER SHARE DATA
FIRERBRCGENL) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 16.2 8.2 98%
SRIRE RS CEN) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 8.0 7.2 11%
BREEFECET) Net assets per share (HK$) 4.6 4.1 12%
FEHMBLLE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
TR R ERS B ERE (%) Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 3.7 2.0 85%
Y& EAEEERE(%) Return on average total assets (%) 2.9 1.6 81%
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Annual General Meeting (AGM)
22 August 2018 (Wednesday) at 4:00 p.m.

Register of Shareholders

Closure of Register (both days inclusive)

For attending AGM 17 — 22 August 2018
(Fri — Wed)

For Final Dividend 28 — 30 August 2018

(Tue — Thu)

Dividend (per Share)
Interim Dividend
Paid on

Final Dividend
Payable on or about

HK3.0 cents

HK5.0 cents

11 January 2018 (Thu)

14 September 2018 (Fri)
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60 Years of Achievement

2018

RIS 60 B
Chen Hsong 60" Anniversary

SINCE 1958

2016

BHARER _RESH BRI BHE—
6500 BALRIEE + T E R R AR AL 8%
[ERiEaIzIEE 2]
Chen Hsong was awarded “Record of
Shenzhen Enterprise Innovation — Award
for Innovative Product Development” for its
6,500-ton ultra-large-tonnage, two-platen
injection moulding machine with unique
“Y-Injectors” technology
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2015

BRI ORI BRARIRE [BRES
MRER) (EE=F)

Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen)

Co., Ltd. was awarded “Guangdong Top
Brand”(12/2014-2017)

reEdam-a

2014

RIETHEE (£=H) BEEETIZZEK -
REEEENEBERIREERANZER
The third-stage development project of the
Shenzhen Industrial Park is complete

20006-05

RSB A [HREI#M 500 58] B3
Chen Hsong was awarded “Top 500
Machinery in China”

RIS LA 20056 FEBRRBNRK R
BREZ [REFABE]

Dr. Chen Chiang was awarded the Grand
Bauhinia Medal 2005 of Hong Kong SAR

EHEBARARWERERMS (18N
Hr] BRIEENE 200 M&ELETARZ—
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited was elected
one of the 200 Finest Companies in Asia
by Forbes

EEEEARAT 2018 T4

2004-01

ERETER (F-H) FXEE
Phase Il of Chen Hsong Industrial Park
commenced production

iChen SystemTM RERBIRSE  HER
RIBRHEREE

The iChen System”" was awarded Hong
Kong Awards for Industry: Machinery and
Equipment Design Certificate of Merit

- |E|F
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B s @ RAR R BERNAEREE
(ZL 01257876 2)

The Circular Platen was awarded Utility
Model Patent Certificate. (ZL 01 2 57876 .

2)

B TR SRR R (SR AR AR
Established Chen Hsong Machinery
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd. in Ningbo, PRC

2000

FRYITIFILEBZER R+ ]8T HK
B TRETER] 2 (F—8) TREK
Z3 A

Chen Hsong's main manufacturing and
R&D centers, the 560,000sq.m. “Chen
Hsong Industrial Park” was set up in
Shenzhen, PRC

CHEN-PET — &R=URMT BB E Rt
[BEBTEE BEHEHBRREHRE]
CHEN-PET, a two-stage preform moulding
turnkey system, was awarded the “CMA
Machinery and Equipment Design Award
(Hong Kong Awards for Industry)”

Ef’éﬂ%w?ﬁﬂ’iﬁﬁﬁﬁ AIEHE 115014001
REEBRGRERE]

Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Co., Ltd.

was awarded “ISO 14001 Environmental

Management System Certificate”

Q0'S
6 BIG T E BB ATR R OBE B

Dr. Chen Chiang was honoured with the
OBE award

t&%%ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬂ AlZIE [1SO 9001
BEEMEREE]
Chen Hsong Machinery Co., Ltd. was
awarded “ISO 9001 Quality Assurance
Certificate”

BEESEERDAEEERAERDMER
= (#4855 0 00057)

Chen Hsong Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code:
00057) was listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BRI RALELT
(“ll!l.‘hﬂmml-lﬂ-ll

BEELREERE 2 REEEERA
BRI [BRIFXEEES)

Dr. Chen Chiang donated his shares in
Chen Hsong Holdings Ltd. to establish
“Chiang Chen Industrial Charity
Foundation”

MBI EREENE
Awarded the Governor’s Award for Industry
(Productivity Category)

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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B RARSEE) —IRAEL T BB H—4500 MEEE
BEBDEREMAEG (BB T #F
B T AR 2]

SUPERMASTER Two Platen Advanced
Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine-
4500 tons has won “Hong Kong Awards for
Industries Machinery and Machine Tools
Design”of CMA

2011

BEEEERQA=FEBENBRT _RAK
B PR A R

Chen Hsong collaborates with Mitsubishi
Heavy Industries Plastic Technology Co.,
Ltd., in development of large tonnage two
platen machines

BRI (ORI BRARKE [2REF
SMNEIRADRE [BERE] ]

Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. was awarded “National Excellent
Enterprise with Foreign Investment
Excellent Tax Payment and Turnover”

EnEn anhEse ’
LRLASNATLE

60 Years of Achievement

2010

PR A 8 1L T BB % B R R IE =
AR E

Chen Hsong Industrial Park in Foshun
Fengxiang commenced production

ANt REAFEHAF

200/

[BIf CH| MMM [FhEAE
Eml W%

“ EE1f CH” was awarded “China Top
Brand”

80's
REREHRUTIEERER YL [REZEH
RERA R AT ]

Established Chen De Plastics Machinery
Co., Ltd. in Shunde, PRC

RAEK BRI DB R AR
Established Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Co., Ltd. in Taiwan

ERERBETEB+ BT RERERE
Completion of 170,000 sq.ft. factory at Tai
Po Industrial Estate in Hong Kong

RIFEEARAR 2018 T

/0's
t+FERER (MAL) Em
“King of Toys” in 1970's

60's
HEHE ARG RENEM 10 T B4
BT PRYRET B EREHAE
[#iHdn | 5B
10 ounce in-line screw-type plastic
injection moulding machine, the first
locally-designed and manufactured, was
launched and granted the “New Product
Award” by The Chinese Manufacturer’s
Association of Hong Kong

50's

Chen Hsong founded

ok e 1

ELE 3=
Launched the first two-colour extrusion
blow moulding machine

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Corporate Information

Honorary Chairman
Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBMm

Directors
Executive Directors

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman) (retired and
was appointed Honorary Chairman on 23 April 2018)
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer and
was appointed Chairman on 23 April 2018)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (was appointed Deputy Chairman on
23 April 2018)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Audit Committee

Mr. Anish LALVANI (Chairman)
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (Chairman)
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG

Nomination Committee

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN (Chairman)
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE (Chairman)
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Company Secretary
Mr. Chi Ngai CHAN
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

The Belvedere Building
69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HMO8
Bermuda
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Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
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BT - (852) 2665 3888

HE : (852) 2664 8202
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Corporate Information

Authorized Representatives

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
Mr. Chi Ngai CHAN

Auditor
Ernst & Young

Principal Bankers

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

Principal Share Registrars

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrars

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Registered Office

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Head Office & Principal Place of Business

13-15 Dai Wang Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po, New Territories
Hong Kong

Corporate Communications & Investor Relations

Ms. Staeley CHAK

Tel: (852) 2665 3888

Fax: (852) 2664 8202

E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com
Website: www.chenhsong.com

Stock Code
00057
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Chairman’s Statement

BEBT AIAREKEELR
Dr. Chen Chiang Founder and Honorary Chairman

Business Review

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Group registered
total turnover of HK$1,668 million (2017: HK$1,451 million), an
increase of 15% as compared with last year. Profit attributable to
equity holders was HK$102 million (2017: HK$51 million).

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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FEREE
Chairman’s Statement

Worldwide economies and international relations and politics for
this financial year were packed with uncertainties. The overall U.S.
economy was boosted by the U.S. Tax Reform, although Brexit
brought along with uncertainties to the economic development in the
region, the British economy has done better than expected since the
Brexit. On the other hand, driven by the “One Belt, One Road” and the
“Greater Bay Area” initiatives, the China economy was comparatively
more stable than the rest of the world, and the implementation of
these schemes further defined the future development blueprint and
direction of China. Although, the strengthening of the “environmental
and safety” regulations in the second half affected our customers,
especially small to medium enterprises, the impacts were still

manageable and temporary.

By upholding the Group’s core value of “Quality is of Paramount
Importance, Technology is our Core Competence”, the Group
continued to co-operate with world-renowned and world-class hi-tech
partners in the industry to enhance its research and development
capabilities in order to develop new products with better quality and
innovative application of technologies, and as a result striving for
the most from the “China Manufacturing 2025” and “Industrie 4.0”
initiatives. With the launch of the entire product line of the “Sixth
Generation” MK6 series of stable and high-speed injection moulding
machines; it gained tremendous popularity from new customers and
existing high-end customers. This product line not only gained market
shares at an overwhelming pace, but also set a strong foundation for
the development of the next-generation high-speed machine, expected
to be launched gradually in the next year.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Chairman’s Statement
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Overall speaking, the growth rate of China economy was relatively
strong compared to other economies, and particularly the automotive
sector witnessed a strong boom, the Group continued to invest in
the design optimization of large-tonnage machines and had high
expectations in this product line. The Group will also continue to
adopt a stable and steady, yet aggressive, approach in developing new
overseas markets and gaining firm foothold in the China market.

Future Prospects

According to the latest economic indicators, the U.S. economy
forecast is moderately positive in the coming year. As the U.S. inflation
expectations edged higher, the U.S. Federal Reserve will likely respond
with a faster pace of rate hike. Furthermore, the rising protectionist
sentiment in the U.S. and recent swinging U.S. foreign policy would
dampen the economic growth in China and other developed countries,
which will continue to cast a dark cloud of uncertainty over the world
economy. Furthermore, with the expectation of the U.S. federal funds
rate hike, the strengthening U.S. Dollar will continue to plague the
economies of emerging markets.

Looking on the bright side, with “One Belt, One Road” initiative, not
only will it contribute to the economic growth of the Belt and Road
countries, but also resolve the overcapacity problems in China.
In addition, the massive trends and developments of the “China
Manufacturing 2025” and “Industrie 4.0” will further boost the
economic growth for China in the near future.

The Group will continue to flourish its traditional strengths of diligence,
perseverance and solid, reliable management to face any up-coming
challenges. We will continue to invest in core competitiveness — in
pursuit of perfect quality, developing new products and advanced
technologies, as well as opening new markets around the world.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Chairman’s Statement

Gratitude

My father Dr Chen Chiang (“Dr Chiang”) has upheld his belief in
“Enriching the Livelihood of People by Industry, Strengthening the
Country through a Prosperous Society” since the establishment of
the Group 60 years ago and successfully led the Group to be one of
the largest plastic injection machine manufacturers in the world. On
behalf of the Board of Directors and the management team, | would
like to take this opportunity to thank Dr Chiang, who has retired as
the Chairman and has been appointed as the Honorary Chairman of
the Group on 23 April 2018, for his invaluable contributions. | would
also like to give my heartfelt thanks to all shareholders of Chen Hsong
Group, customers, suppliers, business partners, banks for their long
term support and the loyal and industrious management team and
employees for their contribution over the years on behalf of the Board
of Directors.

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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BEEZWMAR DT
Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Business Performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Group registered
total turnover growth of 15% to HK$1,668 million (2017: HK$1,451
million). Profit attributable to equity holders rose to HK$102 million
(2017: HK$51 million). Basic earnings per share was HK16.2 cents
(2017: HK8.2 cents). The Board recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK5.0 cents (2017: HK2.6 cents) per share for this
financial year.

During the course of this financial year, there were drastic changes
in China as well as in many countries globally, resulting in great
differences between the two halves of the financial year. During the
first half of this financial year, China’s Gross Domestic Product “GDP”
growth rate and Purchasing Managers’ Index “PMI” successfully
engineered a wonderful turnaround after six consecutive years of
decline in GDP growth rate and PMI was under 50 for a long period
of time. GDP growth reached an astounding 6.9%, way in excess of
consensus expectations, which prompted the International Monetary
Fund to adjust upwards its China economic forecasts four times during
the year. Entering the second half of the financial year, however, a
number of events acted in concert to drag this speeding locomotive
into a grudging slow-down: rampant uncertainties surrounding major
policy, constitutional and leadership changes in the 19th National
Congress of the Communist Party in October 2017, as well as a
sudden wave of “environmental and safety” inspections throughout
the country, the strictness and strong-handedness unseen in recent
history. These events and uncertainties had put a damper on new
capital investments.

Almost a complete mirror opposite of China, global markets started off
the financial year lacklustre, albeit steadily improving, during the first
half of the financial year, with many western economies (such as the
USA, Europe) and Japan continuing their slow recovery tracks which
did not only lag behind China, but were also constantly plagued by
rising protectionist sentiments in the USA. Entering the second half of
the financial year, however, worldwide economic conditions appeared
to go from strength to strength, improving even further than expected,
with growth rates climbing and even certain developing countries that
were hampered by regional political instabilities starting to find their
ways out from difficulties.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Despite major changes in this financial year's operating environment,
the Group still racked up solid results from new product lines, in
particular the MK6 “Sixth Generation” series of high-performance
injection moulding machines as well as advanced two-platen large-
tonnage machines. Especially encouraging had been the MK6 series
— design led by Japanese experts, the MK6 completed its first full
year of large-scale deployment and its remarkable price-performance
ratio and superb stability made it an instant hit and most talked-about
product in the entire market, with a high repeat order rate. The MK6
series already accounted for almost half of all sales of major small-to-
medium-tonnage machines by the Group, and this ratio is expected to

increase in the future.

JETMASTER MK6 Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine

12 BRESEARRIXF 2018 FH
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BEE WAL R DM
Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the
year ended 31 March 2018 is as follows:

2018 2017
(B¥EET) (B¥aZET) =
EFE i Customer Location (HK$ million)  (HK$ million) Change
AR RE R BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,121 1,017 +10%
=y Taiwan 126 101 +25%
H A INER Other overseas countries 421 333 +26%
1,668 1,451 +15%

FERIGDPR-Z—tFHRNBHARKEEE
B BT R"FHER69% r 28 =

——FRERGBEA - LEFEMBEE
KOEIRIZ (BIEPMI) B3R EE - WZKE@E@%%
T [BERNRIMKERFEZTHED - 52
g :ﬁ&ﬁﬁi‘bﬁﬂwﬂa%%ﬁ , iﬁ%ét
LA FRIAEME o Ut - E¥FENPETS
fﬁﬁgﬁéﬁiiiﬂﬁmﬁttﬁ T27T%HMEiE R

China GDP first exceeded RMB&O trillion in 2017 — a growth of 6.9%
over 2016 and the first sustained increase in growth rate since 2011.
All major indicators (including PMI) for China reported positive during
the first half of the financial year, and the Group also benefited from
widespread market acceptance, and significant increase in sales,
of its new MK6 “Sixth Generation” product line. In addition, sales of
advanced two-platen large-tonnage machines also doubled that of the
previous year. As a result, the Group’s turnover in China registered a
high 27% growth during the first half of this financial year comparing

with the same period of last year.

SPEEDR] iR S &) &7 6 = 2R ) F 2B 1

SPEED Servo Drive High-speed Injection Moulding Machine

EESEARAR 2018 G4
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Nevertheless, a robust market helped highlight unresolved, deep
structural issues, such as rampant over-capacity and the real estate
bubble. As the official report from the 19th National Congress of the
Communist Party, held in October 2017, put clearly: The year 2017 is
pivotal for achieving the goals set out in the 13th Five-Year Plan; it is
the critical year for structural supply-side reforms. The report further
stated that the Chinese economy, having graduated from its growth-
dominant infant stage to becoming a “Modern Economic System,”
the next stage would be quality developments, in particular shifting
emphasis towards the quality and efficiency aspects — “better instead
of more.” A natural consequence of this wind change was a gradual
transformation of the economy from being largely investments-driven
and export to consumption-driven. To mitigate this transformation, as
well as to defuse a looming stagflation and state-owned-enterprises
(SOE) debt crisis, the Central Government launched “The Toughest
Real-Estate Central Policy in History” during late 2017. A record-
breaking 52 new real-estate-related policies were released in 45
different cities throughout the country in the month of September
alone — and these policies no longer left second- to third-tier cities
(where real estate prices still on the rise) alone. These drastic actions
unavoidably affected general investment sentiments during the second
half of this financial year.

Starting from August/September 2017, just before the 19th National
Congress of the Communist Party, the Central Government also
launched a new, extremely strong-handed wave of environmental and
safety inspections throughout the country, “Replacing gold and silver
mountains with green hills and clear waters” being the national outcry.
All levels of regional and local government agencies started shutting
down and sealing off non-conforming factories and product lines in a
high-speed bid to stop polluting processes and improve environmental
conditions. Due to the sudden, and no forewarning, nature of the
movements, as well as the unprecedented hardness of enforcement,
a large number of small-to-medium manufacturing enterprises were
caught off-guard (and red-handed), many of them in a state of being
shut down during most of the second half of this financial year. This
policy wave affected customers of the Group in a particularly major
degree, as the injection moulding processes itself has clear and
unavoidable environmental concerns. Consequently, the Group’s
turnover in China during the second half of this financial year ended
up dropped slightly comparing with that of last year. The average
turnover growth in China market was 10% for the entire financial year,
with turnover of HK$1,121 million (2017: HK$1,017 million).
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

The Central Government’s environmental enforcement appeared to
have obtained expected results, with environmental quality of the
“Capital Circle” (i.e. Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei) markedly improving
— PM2.5 dropped significantly for the first time at the end of 2017, a
clear reversal of normal trends. It is, therefore, quite certain that such
environment policies will persist into the near future, and so it will
likely continue to affect China market sentiments. Nevertheless, the
Group believes that, with the new MK6 series reaching a high repeat
order rate and advanced two-platen machines still having unmet
needs, the widespread reception of these new product lines can
compensate for any adverse impacts of policy on market, and that the
Group’s China turnover growth will return to better numbers.

International markets were the mirror opposite of China conditions,
with @ number of developing countries (especially in the Middle East)
plagued by regional political instabilities and the U.S. protectionist
sentiments. Growth rate of turnover during the first half of this financial
year was only a mild 10% comparing with the same period of last year.
Entering the second half of this financial year, however, all problems
seemed to resolve themselves, with many negative sentiments
disappearing, such as the U.S. protectionist policies. As a result, the
Group’s sales turnover in many countries rose significantly during
the second half of this financial year, which was especially so for the
troubled Middle East region. Other regions, such as South East Asia,
North and South Americas, continued to growth strongly. Although
the U.S. Dollar also appreciated substantially during the second half
of this financial year, sowing the seed of future currency problems,
the Group still registered high turnover growth of 26% in international
markets during this financial year to HK$421 million (2017: HK$333
million).

Taiwan customers, being reliant primarily on developed European
and USA markets, benefited greatly from the international recovery.
Therefore, Taiwan was the most steady performing region during this
financial year, with turnover rising 25% to HK$126 million (2017:
HK$101 million).
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SUPERMASTER Two-Platen Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Development of New Technologies and New Products

Leveraging on the success of the new MK6 “Sixth Generation” series,
the Group has gradually accumulated significant expertise on the very
difficult technical issue of maintaining high stability and control during
high-speed production processes. Based on this understanding, the
Group successfully developed and launched a new series of ultra-high-
speed injection moulding machines with stability that exceeds industry
expectations. “Ultra-High-Speed Machine” is generally defined to be a
product line with: 1) injection speed exceeding 250-300mm/s and, 2)
cycle time within 3-5 seconds. Maintaining absolute precision during
ultra-high-speed motion is an universally acknowledged challenging
control problem, the solution of which requires overcoming substantial
technical hurdles.

The result of the Group’s latest R&D effort — the all-new SPEED-
PACK series packaging machines — was first displayed during the
2018 ChinaPlas international exhibition in Shanghai to a worldwide
audience. Everybody who witnessed the machine in operation seemed
to be singing its praises, and seemed to have come to a simple

consensus: it is super stable with amazing speed. The Group is certain
that the SPEED-PACK, together with other SPEED-series product lines,
can help break through to new market positions not attainable before.

SPEED-PACK High-Speed Packaging Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine

16 EHESEABRAR 2018 440 CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



EEMEREER

RTE-TRELAERGEERMSELNAEH
EmmERERK  AKEFHIKLTER)
MBHELEETR  WE—PRBETRIE
HITE - BHERDAFRENTTEE - 1R
FHEEBRNEEN - URIRBSHE®DRI
MEERTEN - AEEREELRENTEHE
MEE R E SR A E R T A A AR B (LR 3 m
Ik BREERSASERESHERER L
ZRINZE T AR o

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

BB 2w R oA

Management's Discussion & Analysis

Production Efficiency and Capacity

In order to further enhance production efficiency as well as to provide
for the ever-increasing demand for precision manufacturing for
new product lines, the Group has commissioned new task forces
specifically tasked to optimize the current production processes, as
well as to start developing intelligent controls for such processes.
The ultimate purpose of this is to, through adapting intelligent
manufacturing techniques, reduce the uncertainties of manual
assembly, inject much-needed flexibility into current systems, and
ensure quality stability in high-end product lines. The Group believes
that this technical direction is necessary to revitalize the traditional,
trusted manufacturing processes in anticipation of a new age of
connected intelligences towards which the world is rapidly converging.
Intelligent manufacturing will be a firm basis for developing and
producing the future high-end products that the Group will eventually
introduce.
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,676
million (2017: HK$1,519 million), which represented a 10% increase
over last year. Cash and bank balances (including pledged deposits)
amounted to HK$659 million (2017: HK$910 million), representing
a decrease of HK$251 million as compared to last year. The bank
borrowing was HK$25 million (2017: HK$73 million), decreased by
HK$48 million, which was short term loan with floating interest rates
for general working capital purposes. The Group recorded a net cash
position of HK$634 million (2017: HK$837 million), representing a
decrease of HK$203 million.

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total borrowings net of
cash and bank balances divided by total assets. The Group had a net
cash position as at 31 March 2018. As a result, no gearing ratio was
presented.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained with appropriate
levels of borrowings to meet the funding requirements of the Group’s
investments and operations.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2018, bank deposits of certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the amount of HK$47 million (2017: HK$57 million) were
pledged, including HK$20 million (2017: HK$30 million) for securing
bank loans granted by banks in Mainland China to customers to
purchase the Group’s products, HK$27 million (2017: HK$24 million)
for securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes, recorded in the
trade and bills payables, to suppliers. As at 31 March 2017, bank
deposits of HK$3 million were pledged as a guarantee for payments of
construction costs of industrial buildings.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments of HK$8
million (2017: HK$10 million), mainly in respect of the construction
works in industrial buildings and the purchases of production
equipment in Mainland China which are to be funded by internal
resources of the Group.

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its funding.
Funds, primarily denominated in the Hong Kong Dollar, the Renminbi,
the New Taiwanese Dollar, the U.S. Dollar and the Euro, are generally
placed with banks in short or medium term deposits for working
capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a borrowing in Japanese yen
equivalent to HK$25 million (2017: HK$23 million) for payments to
suppliers in Japanese yen. The Group, from time to time, assesses the
risk exposure on certain volatile foreign currencies and manages it in
appropriate manner to minimize the risk.

During the year, net foreign exchange losses decreased substantially
as compared with last year because of the lack of foreign exchange
losses on the sizable depreciation of the Renminbi experienced in last
year. The Group has substantial investments in Mainland China and is
aware that any fluctuation of the Renminbi would have an impact on
the net profits of the Group. However, since most of the transactions
of the Group are conducted with the Renminbi, the direct impact
from the exchange losses on the Group’s operations and cash flows is
slight.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group provided (i) guarantees to banks
amounted to HK$38 million (2017: HK$30 million) for bank loans
granted to customers to purchase the Group’s products; and (ii)
performance guarantees to a bank amounted to HK$3 million (2017:
HK$1 million) provided to customers.
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

It has long been the Group’s motto to “Deliver to Customers All That
They Need,” and to the maximum extent possible the Group puts
the interests and needs of our customers as its primary reason of
being. This includes providing the Group’s customers with the best
designed products, the best quality, and timely, appropriate pre/after-
sales services. Similarly, the Group views its suppliers not as mere
vendors but as strategic partners, important links in its supply chain.
It is the Group’s procurement policy to maintain good relationship and
communications with suppliers based on the principle of mutual trust.

In the end, the ultimate goal of the Group with regards to customers
and suppliers is “Win-Win”. The Group believes this to be beyond
question and explanation.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection,
leading the industry in minimizing the impact of its activities on the
environment, and compliance with applicable environmental laws. The
Group has implemented effective Environmental Protection Policy (the
“Policy”) that enables the Group to making progress in environmental
protection.

Under the Policy, the Group focuses on promoting clean production,
and strives to making the most efficient use of resources in its
operations, and minimizing waste and emission. The Group achieves
this aim through actively re-designing its activities and production
methods that encourage and promote recycling of resources, using
environmentally-friendly raw materials and reviewing production
operations constantly to ensure that the processes are effective and
efficient.

The Group enlists its support by engaging and promoting
environmental protection among its suppliers and customers and
implementing training programmes that raise environmental protection
awareness among its employees. Through realistic and achievable key
performance targets, the Group measures the impact of its activities
on the local environment continuously, and conducts research and
explores potential innovative green alternatives that support a green
environment.
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan, while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Taiwan and the respective places of incorporation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board was
unaware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had approximately 2,500 (2017:
2,300) full-time employees. The Group offers good remuneration and
welfare packages to its employees and maintains market-competitive
pay levels. Employees are rewarded based on individual as well as the
results performance of the Group.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social counselling activities,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

Outlook for the Coming Year

Although the so-called “Environmental Storm” is still raging in parts
of China, most manufacturing enterprises have returned to normal
operations. It is projected that market conditions in China in the
coming year will be a gradual improvement, but unlikely to be as
red-hot as the first half of this financial year. There are also dark
clouds over the horizon in international markets, with a strong U.S.
Dollar driving currency devaluations all over the globe (but not the
Renminbi), the U.S. Federal Reserve’s interest rate rising to material
levels, and wavering trade policies (including trade arguments with
China).

2018 is the Group’s 60th Year Anniversary. Having sailed through
a solid 60 years of endeavours since 1958, the steady, reliable and
trustworthy Chen Hsong Group will undergo a metamorphosis into
a new Chen Hsong, tailored made to be successful in the next 60
years, with all the original strengths, but also with high new spirits,
revolutionary new products and technologies, as well as a more
energetic and dynamic look. Please stay tuned for more remarkable
changes to come.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Honorary Chairman
Chen CHIANG GBM, 0BE, DEng, DSc, DSSc, DBA, FHKIE

Dr. Chiang was appointed a Director of the Company in 1991. He
retired as Chairman of the Board and Executive Director of the
Company and was appointed as Honorary Chairman of the Company
on 23 April 2018. He is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company, and also a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited
and Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited, substantial shareholders
of the Company. Dr. Chiang founded the Group and The Chiang
Chen Industrial Charity Foundation. He was appointed Hong Kong
Affairs Advisor and a member of the Advisory Committee of College of
Management, National Chung Cheng University. Dr. Chiang is also the
Economy Advisor of Shandong Provincial People’s Government and
the Honorary President of The Research Centre for Market-Economy of
Peking University. In addition, Dr. Chiang is the Honorary Chairman of
the Hong Kong Electrical Appliance Industries Association. Dr. Chiang
founded Chiang Chen Industrial Institute situated at his hometown of
Heze City of Shandong Province in 1999. Dr. Chiang, aged 94, is the
father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors
Lai Yuen CHIANG B4, Jr
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director of
the Company in 2000 and Chairman of the Board of the Company on
23 April 2018. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
responsible for the management and business development of the
Group. Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various subsidiaries of the
Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited and
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited, substantial shareholders of
the Company. She is the sole Director and shareholder of Proficient
City Investments Limited (deemed a substantial shareholder of the
Company by virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). She
holds a bachelor degree of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has
extensive experience in production management, sales and marketing.
Ms. Chiang is an Independent Non-executive Director of Hang Seng
Bank Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)). She is also a member of Guangdong Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
standing committee member of the Shenzhen Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Vice-Chairman of
the Federation of Shenzhen Industries and Vice-President of China
Shenzhen Machinery Association. Ms. Chiang was awarded the “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in 2004. Ms. Chiang, aged 52, is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s
daughter and the sister of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Chi Kin CHIANG Bsc
Deputy Chairman and President — Group Manufacturing

Mr. Chiang joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003 and Deputy Chairman of the Board of the
Company on 23 April 2018. He also holds the position of President —
Group Manufacturing responsible for the manufacturing function of
the Group. Mr. Chiang holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of
the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is the sole Director
and shareholder of Peckham Ventures Limited (deemed a substantial
shareholder of the Company by virtue of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance). Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor degree of Applied Science in
Industrial Design from Rochester Institute of Technology, New York.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chiang had six years’ experience in
industrial design, working for a multinational company in the U.S.A..
Mr. Chiang is the Vice President of China Plastics Machinery Industry
Association. Mr. Chiang, aged 51, is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s son and the
brother of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG wBA, BSc

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief
Officer — Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science
from the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA
degree in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A..
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chung, aged 51, had more than 14
years’ experience in sales and marketing, management consultancy,
financial analysis and information technology.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Sam Hon Wah NG BSc Econ, MBA, MAF, DBA, FCA, FCPA

Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2003. Mr. Ng holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of
the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Ng was engaged in financial management with several multinational
companies. He has extensive cross-border financial management,
mergers and acquisitions, and corporate development experience.
Mr. Ng is responsible for managing special projects and corporate
governance of the Group. He holds an honour degree in Economics
at the London School of Economics (University of London), a master
degree of Applied Finance at the Macquarie University (Australia),
an MBA degree from The City University Business School (England)
and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from the University of
Newcastle (Australia). Mr. Ng, aged 58, is a Chartered Accountant, a
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
& Wales, and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN BA, BsSc

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He is
currently a Director of IB Partners Pte Limited. He was the Chief
Executive Officer and a Director of Raimon Land Public Company
Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand) from May 2013 to
June 2016 and from February 2013 to June 2017, respectively. Mr.
Tan has over 20 years’ experience in investment banking based out
of New York, Hong Kong and Singapore. He had held various roles
with leading financial institutions including JP Morgan, UBS Warburg,
Macquarie and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where he was
the Chief Executive Officer and regional head for their South East Asia
corporate finance business. He has advised major corporations and
government authorities across the region. Mr. Tan, aged 57, graduated
from the National University of Singapore and was a recipient of the
Lim Tay Boh gold medal and NUS Economics Society Book Prize.

Anish LALVANI BsSc, MBA, FHKIoD

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He
is the Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has
business interests in Hong Kong, Europe, Africa and the Middle East.
He has lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A., India and Hong Kong
and holds an MBA degree from the University of San Diego. Mr.
Lalvani has extensive marketing experience in the emerging markets
and an in-depth knowledge of electrical appliances manufacturers
in China — many of whom have in-house moulding facilities. He is
the former Chairman for both the North Asia Region and the Hong
Kong Chapter of the Young Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lalvani,
aged 52, is a member of the Hong Kong Friends’ Committee of Asian
Cultural Council, a Director of Kew Asia Foundation, a Member of
Kew Foundation Council, a Member of the HKUST Business School
Advisory Council and a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He resigned as a Trustee of Kew Foundation and a Director of Harvard
Business School Association of Hong Kong Limited on 4 July 2017
and 17 August 2017, respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Bernard Charnwut CHAN ¢ss, Jp

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. Mr.
Chan, aged 53, is a graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A..
He has been elected a Deputy to the National People’s Congress of
the People’s Republic of China since January 2008. He is member
of Executive Council and a former member of the Legislative Council
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Chan is the
Chairman of Hong Kong Palace Museum Ltd., the Hong Kong-Thailand
Business Council, the Committee on Reduction of Salt and Sugar in
Food and the Steering Committee on Restored Landfill Revitalisation
Funding Scheme. In addition, he serves as the Chairperson of The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service and a council member of the
Oxfam Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is currently an Executive Director and
the President of both Asia Financial Holdings Ltd. (listed on the Stock
Exchange) and Asia Insurance Company, Limited and an advisor to
Bangkok Bank (China) Company Limited. He is an Independent Non-
executive Director of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited, both of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan resigned as a Non-executive Director of
City e-Solutions Limited on 9 September 2016, which is listed on the
Stock Exchange. He also resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director of Wing Lung Bank Limited on 19 September 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Michael Tze Hau LEE B4, vBA

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is
a director of Oxer Limited, a private investment company. Mr. Lee
started his career in the investment industry in 1987 and has since
held senior management positions in multinational investment
companies including Indosuez Asia Investment Services Limited
and Lloyd George Management. He also co-founded Asia Strategic
Investment Management Limited in 1995. Mr. Lee, aged 57, was
educated in the U.S.A. and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from
Bowdoin College and a Master of Business Administration Degree
from Boston University. Mr. Lee was a member of each of the Main
Board and Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committees of the Stock
Exchange. He is a Non-executive Director of Hysan Development
Company Limited and an Independent Non-executive Director of
Trinity Limited, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange; and
a Steward of The Hong Kong Jockey Club. Mr. Lee retired as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and as the Chairman and Independent Non-executive
Director of OTC Clearing Hong Kong Limited on 29 April 2015.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is
committed to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for
the following deviations:

Code provision A.4.2 provides that every director should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The directors
of the Company (except the Chairman of the Company) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years as the Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda provides that the
chairman and managing director of the Company are not required to
retire by rotation.

Code provision E.1.2 requires that the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. Dr. Chen CHIANG, the
then Chairman of the Board and now the Honorary Chairman of
the Company, was absent from the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 12 September 2017. The chief executive officer (also
an executive director) and other directors of the Company, together
with the chairmen/members of the audit, nomination, remuneration
and corporate governance committees, were available to answer any
shareholders’ questions regarding the activities of the Company and
various Board committees.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of four executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Note:

Ms. Lai Yuen Chiang (Chairman appointed on 23 April 2018, Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer) is the sister of Mr. Chi Kin Chiang (Deputy
Chairman appointed on 23 April 2018 and Executive Director).

The biographical details of all directors are set out on pages 22 to 28
of this annual report. Each director brings a wide range and years of
business and/or professional experience to the Board. Their combined
experience, knowledge and expertise are valuable in overseeing the
Group’s business.

A list of directors of the Company and their role and function is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business
plans; to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices
throughout the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and
manage risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.
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Delegation to Management

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to
the Management comprising all executive directors, management
staff, and operating heads of different business units. The main
responsibilities of the Management are to implement the strategies
and business plans set by the Board and to manage the Group’s
business operations in accordance with the policies and directives of
the Board.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board held four regular meetings throughout the year at
approximately quarterly intervals to review the overall strategies
and the operating and financial performance of the Group. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda for
Board meetings in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least
14 days is given to all directors for all regular Board meetings, and
all directors are given opportunity to include matters for discussion
in the agenda. Draft minutes of Board meetings are circulated to all
directors for comments. Minutes of Board meetings with details of
matters considered by the Board and decision reached are kept by the
Company Secretary and open for inspection by the directors.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

31



%ﬂhA*ﬁ
Corporate Govemcmce Report

REBEEZE-ZT-N\F=A=1+—BILZBKEE During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, four regular Board
N AAEHREBITNAEERTHEHEL—/L  meetings and one general meeting were held and the attendance
[EERARE  SUEEZLFLHEIIWT record of each director is as follows:
EERES BEXRE
HERE ERRE HERE GEXH
Exgs Number of Board Meetings | Number of General Meetings
Name of Director Attended/Held Attended/Held
HTES

Executive Directors

BEEET(RZE—-—N\FHOA=Z+=HREMA
FEREE) 2/4 0/1

Dr. Chen CHIANG (retired as Chairman and
Director on 23 April 2018)

BT (REBHE N - \FNA=+=H
BEERER) 4/4 11

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer and
has been appointed as Chairman on 23 April 2018)

BEBEE(RE-\FHAZT=RABZER
BlERE) 4/4 1/1

Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (has been appointed as
Deputy Chairman on 23 April 2018)

ERREE 4/4 11
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

REERA 4/4 171
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

BUYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors

PREE A4 4/4 1/1
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANISE A& 4/4 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI

PR S B A 4/4 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

FFE A& 4/4 0/1
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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The agenda and accompanying board papers for regular Board
meetings are sent out in full package to all directors at least three days
before the date of a Board meeting. All directors have access to board
papers and related materials and may, in appropriate circumstances,
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who ensures that board procedures and applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on
directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business.
The Company reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual
basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, Dr. Chen CHIANG
was the Chairman of the Board and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG was the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer are defined clearly to ensure their
accountability and responsibility with respect to the management of
the Company.

The Chairman focuses on overall corporate development and high-
level strategic directions of the Group, provides leadership to the
Board, and oversees the efficient functioning of the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the business
of the Group, policy making and corporate management and the
implementation of strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board with
the support from the Management.

As at the date of this report, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Chairman
of the Board (with effect from 23 April 2018) and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code of the Listing Rules, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. However, given the skills and experience of Ms. Chiang
and her long term of service with the Group, this structure can be
considered appropriate to the Group and can provide the Group with
strong and consistent leadership for effective and efficient business
planning and decisions, as well as execution of long term business

strategies.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more
than three years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
is subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee reviewed and
assessed the individual independent non-executive director’s annual
confirmation of independence and considered all independent non-
executive directors remained independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules. The independent non-executive director is required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his independence.

The independent non-executive directors will take lead in considering
matters which a substantial shareholder or a director has conflict of
interest. Board committee comprising independent non-executive
directors will be formed to advise the independent shareholders
on connected transaction to be approved by the independent
shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company.

The Board is grateful for the contribution and independent advice and
guidance that the independent non-executive directors have been
giving to the Board and the Board committees.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

On appointment to the Board, each director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering the Company’s constitutional documents,
the policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general,
statutory and regulatory obligations of being a director to ensure that
he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and other relevant requirements.

The directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, other regulatory
regime and the business development of the Company. To keep
abreast of the responsibilities of the directors and infuse them with
new knowledge, an in-house seminar was conducted covering the
topic of new statutory provisions and requirements under the Listing
Rules during the financial year ended 31 March 2018. Apart from
what the Company had arranged, some of the directors also attended
other external training seminars.
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FrEZERARARRREMPIMZEMNIENZ  The directors are required to provide the Company with details of the
B o IRIBFTIREEMER - REZE=ZF—/\F training undertaken by them. Based on the details so provided, the
A=t BULHHEERN fTBEESLHE  training undertaken by the directors during the financial year ended
Eop=gillkiv B U 31 March 2018 is summarized as follows:

2HER PR REEERE
EHheg Mg Hwe

(BB - E5EHE - ZFRREXER
Reading Materials/Journals and/or
Attending Briefings/Presentations/
Seminars/Conferences

(Relevant to the Business,

=Y e Directors’ Duties, Regulatory &
Name of Director Corporate Governance)
HITES

Executive Directors

BEELT(WRZE—\FOA-T=RAEREEERES) v
Dr. Chen CHIANG (retired as Chairman and Director on 23 April 2018)

BEAXT(EEAHEN T/ \FOA-_+=BRZEREFE) v
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer and has been appointed as
Chairman on 23 April 2018)

BEBREF(R_ZE-N\FEHAZT=RABZERIFRE) v
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (has been appointed as Deputy Chairman on
23 April 2018)

ERREE v
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

REESA v
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

BYFHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

PR . S v
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANIZE 4 v
Mr. Anish LALVANI

PR A B A v
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

RFREEA v
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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Confirmations have been received from the directors that they are
able to devote sufficient time as and when required to discharge their
responsibility as a director of the Company. Besides, the directors
have disclosed to the Company their interest as director and other
offices in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments in a timely manner and have updated the Company on
any subsequent changes.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company,
after having made specific enquiry of all directors, confirms that all
directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Code
of Conduct and the Model Code throughout the financial year ended
31 March 2018.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998. As at the date of
this report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Johnson Chin
Kwang TAN, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze Hau
LEE. Mr. Anish LALVANI is the Committee Chairman.

The roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the Company has
formal and transparent arrangements for considering matters relating
to the Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control and overseeing the Company'’s relationship with the Company’s
external auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings (totalling four sessions)
during the financial year ended 31 March 2018 to review with the
Company’s internal and external auditor, the Group’s internal controls
and financial results and related matters. The attendance record of
each member is as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Anish LALVANISE &
Mr. Anish LALVANI

BREE 4
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

ﬁ% B /u\?ﬁﬂz
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

RFREEA
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

ERZEEGRE HEREEERH
Members of Audit Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BIUkHITES

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

REBE-T-/\F=ZA=+—HLEZHRFE
N BZZEECET:

o BMEUAKERFRPHMBMBEHRER 2 AR

RATHE - S ENB AT
o« BMEEAZED  ARHEYARE

M%ﬁiz%ﬁ:

o BUEHS/MBRZEENIR HEE R R
EM

A EEZ

o BFAREANMEIERR B

o BB-T—+ /T \FHANEFTE

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee
had:

e reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with
respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external
auditor;

e reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts
on the Group’s financial statements;

e made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditor
and reviewed their audit fees;

reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;

approved the 2017/2018 Internal Audit Plan;
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e reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
Internal Audit Department and the responses of the Management;

e reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

e reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements;

e reviewed the annual plan on risk management control;

e reviewed the update on risk management; and

e reviewed the risk assessment reports.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut
CHAN, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr.
Michael Tze Hau LEE, and the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG. Mr. Bernard Charnwut
CHAN is the Committee Chairman. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews
and determines the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management and to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Group with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration
Committee considers factors such as duties and responsibilities of
the executive directors and senior management and the amount of
remuneration paid by comparable companies.
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Remuneration of executive directors comprises salary, allowances,
performance related bonus and pension scheme contributions.
Information about directors’ emoluments during the financial year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out in note 9 to the financial statements
of this annual report.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the financial
year ended 31 March 2018. The attendance record of each member is
as follows:

FHEEERE ERE, &ERE
Members of Remuneration Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BYFHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BRE B4 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

BREE K e 4 1/1
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANI%c & 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI

MFExTE 171
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

FE - EELABRITES

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

ERAZT(RZE-— N \FOA-Z+=BEZARER) 1/1
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (has been appointed as Chairman on 23 April 2018)

REBE-T-\F=ZA=+—HLEZHRFE
W FMEZEeHEES 2 @RIRR MEAE
FREERHZZRER  ROTBRNTES
(AFRARASREEAR) ZHE RIEA
ARBIIFMTESE 2T - WEENEEHE
ERLMERAAZHFTMERE -

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed and approved matters relating to the
salaries and bonus of the executive directors (also being the senior
management of the Company) and the fee of the independent non-
executive directors after assessing their individual performance and
in consultation with the proposals of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. No individual director took part in voting his/her own
remuneration at the meeting.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. As at the date
of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr.
Anish LALVANI, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze
Hau LEE. Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN is the Committee Chairman.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and making recommendations on
any proposed change to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors.

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) in 2013
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Policy is summarized below:

e |n reviewing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
will consider a number of aspects of the Board diversity, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service (the
“Board Diversity Criteria”).

e |n identifying qualified individuals to become Board members, the
Nomination Committee will consider the Board Diversity Criteria.

e Board appointments will be based on merit and contribution the
chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

e The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the implementation
of the Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Nomination Committee will participate in the assessment and
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. Individuals,
suitably qualified are identified and nominated to the Board. The
selection criteria for Board membership include professional expertise,
high standards of relevant skills, high levels of integrity and business
ethics, demonstrable competence together with the Board Diversity
Criteria as required by a director of a listed company. A candidate to
be appointed as an independent non-executive director must meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the financial year
ended 31 March 2018. The attendance record of each member is as
follows:

REZBEENE HERE BRI
Members of Nomination Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BYFHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BREE e S
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANISE 4
Mr. Anish LALVANI

PREBEE
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

AFEEAE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

171

171

171

171

RBE-Z-N\F=ZA=1+—BILZHEF
EA REZECERAMKTRETHNHR
B ABRZTE  HMEBIFATEEZE
It BEHER Tt FRREAFRE L
WEREMABEETEZNRERE -

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed and discussed the structure, size and diversity of the Board,
assessed the independence of independent non-executive directors, and
approved the nomination of the retiring directors to seek for re-election at
the 2017 Annual General Meeting.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (the “CG Committee”) was
established in 2012. As at the date of this report, the CG Committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Michael
Tze Hau LEE, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr.
Bernard Charnwut CHAN, and one executive director, Mr. Sam Hon Wah
NG. Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE is the Committee Chairman.

The CG Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable
to the directors and employees of the Company and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in this
report.
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The CG Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended
31 March 2018. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

TEEREEENE

Members of CG Committee

ERE, EERE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BIFBTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

FIF 2 54
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

BREE K e 4
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANISEAE
Mr. Anish LALVANI

PRE B A
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

HTES

Executive Director

ROEFELE
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2
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N EEEREESCEHNARRCEERR
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SNSR BT &
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7T HAE®2,329,000t BEZ RS - B
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the CG Committee had
reviewed the corporate governance compliance status of the Company,
the board evaluation questionnaires completed by the directors, the
compliance with the Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors
and Relevant Employees and the training and continuous professional
development records of directors and senior management.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

External auditor’'s remuneration for the financial year ended 31 March
2018 amounted to a total of HK$2,863,000, of which HK$2,329,000
was incurred for audit services, HK$346,000 for tax-related services
and HK$188,000 for other non-audit services.
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Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 March 2018 have been audited by the external auditor,
Ernst & Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group which were prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditor about the responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 71 to 79 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group acknowledges certain aspects of risks are inherent in its
businesses and the markets it operates, and in pursuit of its corporate
objectives, undertakes to determine and monitor material risks in
order to enable sustainable growth and long term shareholder value.
The Group implements a comprehensive Risk Management and
Internal Control System (the “Control System”) which is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that significant risks
are identified and managed, transactions are executed in accordance
with management’s authorization, assets are protected, the financial
statements are accurate and reliable for publication, and the Group’s
activities are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The risk management and internal control process is embedded in the
Group’s daily businesses and operations, which involves understanding
the context, identifying potential exposures, assessing the likelihood
of consequences, determining the risk level, establishing appropriate
mitigating measures and followed by appropriate reporting.

JE\ ez B2 EEpllE s DHTEER LR &
Understand |dentify Analyze Evaluate
Context Risk Risk Impact

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H
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The Control System involves an organizational control structure which
emphasizes defined lines of duties and responsibilities, delegation of
authority and segregation of duties. At the top of the risk governance
structure sits the Board who oversees and is responsible for the Control
System and ensures its adequacy and effectiveness and acknowledge
that such system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Board delegates implementation responsibilities of the
Control System to the Risk Management Committee (the “RMC”)
which comprises senior and experienced members of management.
The RMC supervises and facilitates the implementation of the Control
System with appropriate guidelines and tools, tracks material risks
and mitigating activities, and determines significant control failings
or weaknesses that have occurred. The execution of the Control
System is entrusted to the Business Units, and within the Business
Units, the Functional Groups. Each Business Unit is headed by a
General Manager and Financial Controller whose duties are to control
the activities of the Business Unit, ensure appropriate and adequate
operational policies, standards and procedures are in place and are
properly executed. The heads of the Functional Groups exercise risk
assessment in their daily decision making processes, escalate and
report material risks to the Business Unit heads. Through discussion
with the respective Business and Functional Unit heads, the RMC
summarizes a Risk Assessment Report for discussion with the Board.

The Group is able to call for assistance from outside professionals to
support difficult risk controlling matters.

Audit Committee and Internal Audit

The Board appoints the Audit Committee with clear terms of reference,
which comprises independent non-executive directors who are well-
experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee oversees
and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control System.
It also identifies areas for improvement, reviews the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.
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The Audit Committee appoints the Group Internal Auditor (“GIA”),
whose roles and responsibilities are formalized under the Internal
Audit Charter adopted by the Audit Committee. Through ongoing
audit exercises, the GIA takes an independent role of monitoring the
Group’s compliance with established operating and financial policies,
standards and procedures, statutory and regulatory requirements, and
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control System and
to resolve material internal control defects on an annual basis. The
GIA plans the internal audit activities annually and submits an Internal
Audit Plan to the Audit Committee for review and approval. Internal
audit reports are presented to the Audit Committee and all proposed
corrective actions are followed up. The Company Secretary keeps full
minutes of all Audit Committee meetings. Drafts and final versions of
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all committee
members for their comment and record.

External Audit

The Board appoints the external auditor, Ernst & Young, to perform
independent statutory audits of the Group’s financial statements.
The external auditor attend meetings with the Audit Committee,
discuss and report the nature and scope of the audit, any significant
deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit of the
consolidated financial statements, and significant findings from the
audit.

2018 Assessment

The GIA has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Control
System during the year and a Risk Assessment Report was submitted
to the Audit Committee. In addition to the Control System, a
whistleblowing arrangement is in place such that employees can
report their concerns or any misconduct, improper or fraudulent
activities committed by other personnel in the Group. All reported
whistleblowing matters were handled and investigated confidentially
and independently.

Based on the respective assessments, the Board acknowledges that
an adequate and effective risk management and internal control
process was in place for the year ended 31 March 2018. The
resources, qualifications, experience, training programs and budget of
the employees of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting and
internal audit functions were adequate. The Group has complied with
the risk management and internal control code provisions for the year
ended 31 March 2018.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company complies with the requirements of Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules.
The Company discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable after any inside information has come to
its knowledge unless the information falls within any of the “Safe
Harbours” as provided for in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Company ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Company believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Company would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Company is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact, to provide for equal, timely and effective access by the
public to the inside information disclosed.

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the SFO and the Listing Rules, the Company
has taken various procedures and measures, including arousing the
awareness to preserve confidentiality of inside information with the
Company, sending blackout period and securities dealing restrictions
notification to the relevant directors and employees regularly, and
disseminating information to specified persons on a need-to-know
basis.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. All directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that board procedures, and applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary had complied with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year under review.
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Shareholders’ Rights
Convening of Special General Meeting on Requisition

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
(10%) of the paid-up share capital of the Company as at the date of
the deposit which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company have the right to requisite the directors to convene a special
general meeting of the Company. The requisition must state the
purposes of the special general meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist and deposited at the registered office of the Company.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one-half (50%)
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act,
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at general meetings of the Company or of at
least 100 shareholders in number of the Company, may put forward
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at a general meeting of the Company by sending the requisition
together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company not less than six weeks before
the general meeting.
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Pursuant to Bye-law 114 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, shareholder
may propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting
by lodging at the head office of the Company, a written notice of
nomination with the written consent of the nominated person of his/
her willingness to be elected, for a period of at least 7 days which
shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days before the date of such general meeting. Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a director are posted
on the website of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with
all shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information through publication of interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars to shareholders.
To enable the shareholders and investors have timely access to
updated information about the Group, the Company’s website
(www.chenhsong.com) contains important corporate information,
annual and interim reports, as well as announcements and circulars
issued by the Company.

The Company usually conducts briefing immediately following the
publication of the announcement of interim and final results. Face-
to-face meetings and conference calls with institutional investors and
investment analysts are conducted to make sure that shareholders and
potential investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s
business. To ensure all shareholders and potential investors receive
equal access to information at the same time, inside information is
released by publication of announcements pursuant to the Listing
Rules.
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The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to
attend the annual general meeting for which at least 20 clear business
days prior notice is given. The Board, the Chief Executive Officer
and Chairmen of the Board committees (or in their absence, other
members of the committee) are available to answer shareholders’
questions at the annual general meeting. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditor is requested to attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

In the case of any special general meeting to approve a connected
transaction which is subject to independent shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent Board committee will also make an effort
to attend the meeting to address shareholders’ queries.

Significant issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general
meeting, including re-election of individual directors. All resolutions
set out in the notice of general meeting put to the vote of the meeting
were by way of a poll. The results of the voting by poll were published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
will review it when necessary to ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to raise enquiries
through the Company’s Corporate Communications & Investor
Relations Department. The contact details are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Constitutional Documents

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the financial year ended 31 March 2018.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company present its report
and the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

Business Review

The business review of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the
Group’s business; a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year; an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business; an analysis of
the Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators;
a discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance;
a discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group; and an
account of the key relationships with its stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success
depends, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management’s
Discussion & Analysis” and “Financial Highlights” on pages 6 to
9, pages 10 to 21 and the inside front cover of this annual report,
respectively. The above sections form part of this report.
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Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 80 to 194 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per ordinary share to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 30 August 2018.
Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be payable
to shareholders on or about 14 September 2018. The proposed
final dividend together with the interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per
ordinary share paid on 11 January 2018, make a total dividend of
HK8.0 cents per ordinary share for the year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 199 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements of the Group.

Issued Share Capital

There is no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during
the year.

Share Options

A summary of the share option scheme of the Company is set out in
note 31 to the financial statements.

Equity-linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



RIOELBERE

ARz AR BEREEERDELE
ERWERT -

BE - HEIEEEALQFZ LTRSS

m %

RER - ARFHEEMKE QBB ER
ERBRIARF ZAER ETES

AR 7 T A
REFE-N\—FRAAGEETHE
R-F—\F=A=+—8 ARTAHS
R 2 o 8 /5 7 % 136,317,000 + % o 75 s
31,527,000/ 2 Rk {E BAF L2 KIS -
BEBRX

WER REEZEERBRETE RN
130,0007c(—F—+4 : j8%6,0007T) °
IERFRHER

WER - AEEZ BATERS B 2 B
AR R L2 SRR R.30% ¢

RER  AEBZRARRHEHA 2 KB
BIGAKEZ BIRBETE30% -

EEEN

RERW BT SHIFEBRBAR R 2 EREM
EXBOEHNEERITHZEH

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

EERBEE
Report of the Directors

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.
Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$136,317,000, of which HK$31,527,000
has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$130,000 (2017: HK$6,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.
Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existing during the year.
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== Directors

REAREBERREEZ[H  "AFTZESEW  The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

N this report were:

HTES Executive Directors

BEEL  xznag(R=-FT—/F Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (retired as Chairman and
PO —+=HRFLTERHNTESE - Executive Director on 23 April 2018, and has been
PR-ZFE—NFHA=—+=H appointed as Honorary Chairman on 23 April 2018)
EZERPLETE)

BB T (EFESRR —FE—/14F Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer and
P9 -+ =HEZTEEE)* has been appointed as Chairman on 23 April 2018)*

BEBEE(R=_F-—/NFWA=-+=H Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (has been appointed as
EZTEEZEE) Deputy Chairman on 23 April 2018)

ERREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

RIBIES A Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG*

BAFHITESE Independent Non-executive Directors

FR BB o o A+t Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN+*@#

Anish LALVANI %G 4 +*e# Mr. Anish LALVAN|+*@#

PR B o A vve Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN+*e#

R F B 5 Hp+vor Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE+*@#

- FEBRZEE2MAE +  Members of the Audit Committee

* EHNZEE 2SS *  Members of the Remuneration Committee

l]
®

Members of the Nomination Committee

° WBEZHEEMKS

b PRERZEEMK *  Members of the Corporate Governance Committee

/

I[I

B A QT 2 A T 4188 189(viil) & + Anish  In accordance with Bye-law 189(viii) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.

LALVANIZc A ~ BRE BE4A NFFELREE  Anish LALVANI, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze

ERT - HESSBRIEENENERIT AL Hau LEE will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will offer

AR AF KRG LEEET o themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

AATEEZBAABRESENAERB22%28  The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on

B - AEEZSHEBRABRBANATHIT pages 22 to 28 of this annual report. The senior management of the
5= Group is also executive directors of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company or an entity connected with a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force during the year and at
the time of approval of this report.
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Changes in Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the changes in the information of
the directors of the Company subsequent to the date of the 2017/18
Interim Report of the Company are set out below:

(1

)

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG was appointed a member of Guangdong
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference with effect from 23 January 2018.

Dr. Chen CHIANG retired as Chairman of the Board and Executive
Director of the Company, and has been appointed as Honorary
Chairman of the Company, with effect from 23 April 2018.

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG has been appointed as Chairman of the
Board of the Company with effect from 23 April 2018.

Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG has been appointed as Deputy Chairman of
the Board of the Company with effect from 23 April 2018.

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN has been appointed as Chairman of
Hong Kong Palace Museum Ltd. with effect from 1 March 2018.

Details of changes in the directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 9 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in directors’ information
since the date of the 2017/2018 Interim Report of the Company which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2018, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 630,531,600; and the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

(a) Long positions in shares of the Company

EARDF
ERITEBER
ZHBRNED®

Approximate

REBER percentage of
2R the Company’s
EEHE 5% Interest in FizE  issued ordinary
Name of director Capacity ordinary shares Notes shares
BE EmEEA 3,980,000 - 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Beneficial owner
FREFEZKIA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
Founder of
discretionary trust
BEMN EmEAA 5,000,000 - 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner
HAh 398,013,620 (3) 63.12%
Other
BER EmEA A 2,078,000 - 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Beneficial owner
HAh 398,013,620 (3) 63.12%
Other
ERR EmEAA 666,000 - 0.11%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Beneficial owner
BREE EmEAA 484,000 - 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Beneficial owner
Anish LALVANI BREAA 220,000 - 0.03%
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(b) REBEERD 2R
() REHREGRAR([EERE]Z

(b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

(i) Interests in ordinary shares of Chen Hsong Investments

Liml s Limited (“CH Investments”):

hERERE

2EITRAG

ZEBABDL

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

BEEHR g4 ARz S HMi=E shares of CH

Name of director Capacity Interest in shares Notes Investments

BE FREFEZKIA 58,220,300 (2) 100.00%
Chen CHIANG Founder of
discretionary trust

BN Hib 58,220,300 (3) 100.00%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Other

BER Hib 58,220,300 (3) 100.00%
Chi Kin CHIANG Other
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(ii) Dr. Chen CHIANG, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin
CHIANG, all are directors of the Company, are deemed
to be interested in the shares of the following associated
corporations:

IE AR EE
BEAER
ERITRBZ
BAOBDL
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of

HEEEER i g £ MiaE associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

Assetwise Holdings Limited 10% 3 A (1), (4) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

i (hE)RABEAF O BT EREEE D (1), (4) 100.00%
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment 2 non-voting
Company Limited deferred shares

EEMRHERR AR 5,000,000% (1), (4) 100.00%
Chen Hsong Logistics Services EIGERIER D
Company Limited 5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

EIEM AR IR A PR A A 50,000,000% (1), (4) 100.00%
Chen Hsong Machinery Company, EIGCERRLERD
Limited 50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited 1 9% ] & [l iz 17 (1) 100.00%
1 redeemable share

CHI Dorset Square Limited 4,264,675/ E B (D), (7) 100.00%
4,264,675 ordinary shares

EY AR AR IR E A (1), (4) 100.00%
Continuous Victory Limited 1 ordinary share

HETBR AR 2R AR (1), (5) 100.00%

Desee Limited

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH
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B EE AR

Name of associated corporation

R 2

Interest in shares

B &

Notes

IE AR A E
BERER
ERITRBZ
BMAOBDL
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued
shares of
associated
corporation

EBABRAA
Desko Limited

TEEZERAR QA
Elegant City Developments Limited

Elite Sino Investments Limited
BEREBRAF
Equaltex Investment Limited

BXBRAA
Goman Limited

Gondmyne Limited
Granwich Limited

R EMBBIRET MAEERE
BERAA

Hong Kong Cad-Cam Services
Limited

Kadom Limited

EERREBERAQA

KCI Investments Limited

60 EEKEERAT 2018 FHi

2RE M
2 ordinary shares

1 A
1 ordinary share

2% E A
2 ordinary shares

2% E R AX
2 ordinary shares

2RE M
2 ordinary shares

100,000M% & 78 A%

100,000 ordinary shares

1A% & A
1 ordinary share

52,570,000/% & 38 I%
52,570,000 ordinary shares

2% E AR
2 ordinary shares

I &R
1 ordinary share

(1), (5)

(D), 4)

(D), (4)

(D), 4)

(1), (5)

(D), (4)

(D), (4)

(D), 4)

(1), 4)

(1), (6)

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

75.10%

100.00%

100.00%
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G AR A E
HEAER
ERITREZ
BAOBDE
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of

HEEEER Rz s MiaE associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

SHEBRAA 2R AR (1), (5 100.00%
Koyoki Limited 2 ordinary shares

BEREAREBRAR 1R AR (1), (6) 100.00%
Maxford H.K. Investments Limited 1 ordinary share

EREBRAA 2R AR (1), (5) 100.00%
Mikia Limited 2 ordinary shares

REBRAT 2R AR (1), (5) 100.00%
Mogin Limited 2 ordinary shares

Pacific Concept Global Limited 6h% &\ A% (1), (4) 60.00%
6 ordinary shares

Ik BRA A 2R AR (1), (5) 100.00%
Parot Limited 2 ordinary shares

Perfect Choice Global Limited 1R E @A (1), (4) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

EETARAA 2RR E AR (1), (5) 100.00%
Potachi Limited 2 ordinary shares

Pro-Team Pacific Limited 1% E @A (1), (4) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

FEBRA A 2R AR (1), (5) 100.00%

Rikon Limited

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

2 ordinary shares
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IE AR A E
BERER
ERITRBZ
BABE D
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of
HEEEER Rz Es Mt &t associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
hEBB R A A 2R AR (1), (5) 100.00%
Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares
FlL AR A A 2R AR (1), (5) 100.00%
Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares
SEBRATA 20 AR (1), (5) 100.00%
Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares
@E|EEBRAR 1IR3 AR (1), 4) 100.00%

Value Creation Group Limited
Mt -

(1) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited
A ZEH1RE 100% % 2 Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited B &
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited & & #
& e Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited &%
EI¥(rgsEs([g2Ee)za
BETZETEA - RBREZHFRBAER
Bl (QEREEBELHESES ZH
EFETA  WEEETATEERIE
BEESIZRAAN - MRIERER
BinFsEEz  Rb)BEREBEZ T
NEEEE S A 9 B E =B Proficient
City Investments Limited } Peckham
Ventures Limited 2 100% & 10 - % ™
HARARERESESHANUAERTERA
ZEAREAL - R A AR ER A RS
BipFsEER -
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1 ordinary share

Notes:

(1) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 100% interest in CH

Investments. In turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited is
wholly-owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited is the trustee of a discretionary trust, namely The Chiang
Chen Industrial Charity Foundation (the “Charity Foundation”).
By virtue of the SFO, (a) Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be
interested in the relevant shares as he is the settlor of the Charity
Foundation and may be regarded as founder of the Charity
Foundation; and (b) Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin
CHIANG are deemed to be interested in the relevant shares as
they respectively beneficially own 100% shares in Proficient City
Investments Limited and Peckham Ventures Limited, two of the
several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.
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(2) Itk JhCititrust (Bahamas) Limited ff] £
B 2 0 mCititrust (Bahamas)
Limited BEEER ZE5EA - MES
EcEEFREERIRELI0% Eam -
RIBEFESRAEED  AREEELT
DNEEESZMERTA  WEBEER
THIREERIERSEESZRIA
MR IER B R G FE A -

(3) Uit JhCititrust (Bahamas) Limited ff] £
B 2 #Ex  imCititrust (Bahamas)
Limited R & EE ® 255t A - M2
EESHBERFREERKRE100% #
@ IRIBEFREBEGRD - BREE
BRTREEBREEDRERESR
Proficient City Investments Limited }&2
Peckham Ventures Limited 2 100% /%
7 ZWMEARABREESRUEE
BZmAZEF A - B ATHER
TER BRGNS HE R -

(4) BEEREBMIARE -

(5) “EH#TAEHEREEBGondmyne
Limited E##5E ©

(6) Z LMz B EMRE P EAssetwise
Holdings Limited #3548 °

(7) ZEHEZE A EHIER A BB Perfect
Choice Global Limited & ##54 -

B EXPRREEIN KB \F=R=+—
B ARREZFXERTERABRENRAKAF]
S ETAABEE(EERESMPE GRS
XVED) 2 Betn ~ MBI BB 75 A RIERE
7 R B IEPIEI521RBE RN AR R
ERMAZ EEEIAR - RIRBIREST
QMBS 1T G AN A7) R B AP 2 fE it 90K

AN

=
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(2) This represents the interest indirectly held by Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited, trustee of the Charity Foundation, which holds 100%
indirect interest in CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO, Dr.
Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares
as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and may be
regarded as founder of the Charity Foundation.

(3) This represents the interest indirectly held by Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited, trustee of the Charity Foundation, which holds 100%
indirect interest in CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG are deemed to be
interested in the relevant shares as they respectively beneficially
own 100% shares in Proficient City Investments Limited
and Peckham Ventures Limited, two of the several eligible
beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.

(4) Such interests are held by CH Investments.

(5) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Gondmyne Limited.

(6) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Assetwise Holdings Limited.

(7) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Perfect Choice Global Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EERERDVES 2EF

RER  ARAEETRRFTHA BHEER
TATERERAE -

B BRI ESN AR R HEAEM KB QR
REANLBETIAERMLZH - BEARFESA
REBEAQAREMEMEABRZ RDXE
Fis MEE  KRSTHRABRRKEZER
BEARB T N\FZFERFRRERES A RE
ARBEZZEHERN - EITEREMNZEE
Al o

EERNHRFRB2ES

RZZE-NF=R=+—H  BEBEARTE
FRE B S A BRI AR A B T S AT
BB FOEBREERS -

FERRRAEMATRRG REER
R RKA
R=B—\FZA=+—R  HARAEER
BETRABMM  REESRDEEAE
336H/ABITFOAR ABRMAEE 2 TR
SRR A TAAREZ B RIABIR G 2
FRABMT ¢

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

No share options were granted to or exercised by the directors or chief
executive of the Company during the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the directors, chief executive or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2018, none of the executive directors had any interest
in a business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2018, so far as was known to the directors and
chief executive of the Company, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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REATRGDZHE Long positions in shares of the Company
LRV
ERITEBER
ZHABEDL
Approximate
percentage of
EZiBERBE the Company’s
BRERBERBHAR 546 Number of Mitsr  issued ordinary
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares Notes shares
EIRE EnlEEA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
CH Investments Beneficial owner
BE EnlEEA 3,980,000 (3) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Beneficial owner
EREEFE A 398,013,620 (1), (2), (3) 63.12%
Founder of
discretionary trust
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited N | D s 398,013,620 (1 63.12%
Interest of controlled
corporation
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited ZFEA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
Trustee
B EmEEA 5,000,000 - 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner
Efh 398,013,620 (4) 63.12%
Other
Proficient City Investments Limited PRI HEE 2 398,013,620 (4) 63.12%
Interest of
controlled corporation
BEE EmEEA 2,078,000 - 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Beneficial owner
Efh 398,013,620 (4) 63.12%
Other
Peckham Ventures Limited RARHEE 2 398,013,620 (4) 63.12%
Interest of

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

controlled corporation
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RN
ERTERR
ZBHAED

Approximate
percentage of

EERBRE the Company’s

BRERERE AR 5 Number of Miz¥ issued ordinary

Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares Notes shares

EERKRETE(BB)ARAT WEKE 50,410,000 (5) 7.99%
Schroder Investment Management Investment manager

(Hong Kong) Limited

Schroders Plc REESNEE 2w 50,410,000 (5) 7.99%
Interest of
controlled corporation

David Michael WEBB EnREAA 7,835,000 - 1.24%
Beneficial owner

REEHEE 2w 23,793,000 (6) 3.77%

Hret

Interest of
controlled corporation

Notes:

66

(1)

(2)

(3)

I T B S & AT 2 R —BERR 1 o A Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited BESZE S ZE5E A » &
WRERBEBAROMFEEEZR  MZSEBAR
1 7535 B EH AT 4E §ll 2 7% @ Chiangs’ Industrial
Holdings Limited /£ B # 1% & 15 H5 100% # 2= i
A o

REELFLPERD > ARBRELDEZE
SZMERTA  BMERBLEERRIER
EESZHIA > MBEARERE BN FERE

o

Bl

BRELTRABREEL 2B - RIEEH LY
&P BREL T AR BER S ) mRIRIE
RERELHEZAMRD AR -

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H

(1)

(2)

(3)

This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant
shares by virtue of being the trustee of the Charity Foundation, and the
relevant shares are held through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited which holds 100% interest in CH Investments.

By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the
relevant shares as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and he may
be regarded as the founder of the Charity Foundation.

Ms. Jwung Hwa MA, being the spouse of Dr. Chen CHIANG, in the
capacity of interest of spouse, is deemed to be interested in the relevant
shares held by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO.
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4) W BEBEBAMB2ZRA—H#HEH - AR
Proficient City Investments Limited &z Peckham
Ventures Limited ¥ A& EE S K4 6 E %
Xm AZEPA - R ER A BRI
FBAEEZD - M B Z L &Proficient City
Investments Limited M — B = B A R i EHE
% 4 B Peckham Ventures Limited M — & 25
BA

(5) #R¥ESchroders PIcKRZ=ZZ—RF+—A+=
AERzE=EBERE  WHKEEREE
B(EB)BERQAAMBZA—#RG - AR
Schroders Plc AiE#ERIEEERE(BHE)BRA
Rz BBREREAA  BERIERNERRME
B o

(6) 1R ¥ David Michael WEBBR —ZZE—=F =8
THAHEXzERREBRE  ZERMHE
Preferable Situation Assets Limitedi$5 * %2
AlfDavid Michael WEBB 100% 124l °

B EXPRREEIN KB \F=R=+—
B SEEFAEMATEERNRAR 2R E
Bt 2 mgOR R MARERNIRIEE S L
B IEPIFEI36HEARRIFAEF 2 ELCMA

BEALRS

AEBERRBERZ G RUEGESBEA
TIZALATLETRS - FAERESERNTS
HRMEEIT7 -

HNRHIMEX TR TOEER S, 58
RER S - BT »
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(5)

(6)
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This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.
Proficient City Investments Limited and Peckham Ventures Limited are
deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by virtue of being two of the
several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation and Ms. Lai Yuen
CHIANG is the sole beneficial shareholder of Proficient City Investments
Limited and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG is the sole beneficial shareholder of
Peckham Ventures Limited.

Based on the notice of disclosure of interests of Schroders Plc filed on
12 November 2015, this represents the same parcel of shares held by
Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited. Schroders Plc
is deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by virtue of being the
ultimate beneficial owner of Schroder Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited.

Based on the notice of disclosure of interests of David Michael WEBB filed
on 26 March 2013, these shares are held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, a company 100% controlled by David Michael WEBB.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no other persons were

recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company.

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as

“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles. Details are

set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Some of these transactions also constitute connected transaction

or continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, as

identified below.
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BEXS  BEREXS

AEER—ERT - BEEIBMORI)
BERAR ([BBRY]) BERMHEY
¥ WENEE WRRES - WERZ TR
AEEHEXFEABEEERIH MNETTF
B2 RAEAERTET - ZFXF /T AKE
HRKFNRS  WHPRRIAE - FEERH
EBER EMRAFILAZRERTE °

BEEL BERXEIRBEEREE(BRA
NEIZER)  BRAMBMA-—FTHAL A
AN EREXERAARRAGHEIBS0%
ZERERE  HRNBEREXAERAFEEFAR
BRIz 2 oA E R - FTA - BERIIKSR
ERANEEZBERR - XA LEMRRIEL4A
RTRARRLZBEAL -
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Connected Transaction / Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Group purchased raw materials and property, plant and
equipment and received rental income from a related company,
Zhen Jian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“CC-SZ”). These
transactions were also connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions of the Group, which were on normal commercial terms
mutually agreed by the Group and CC-SZ. They were de minimus
transactions and fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Dr. Chen CHIANG, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG
(each being a director of the Company), together with parties acting in
concert with them, control the exercise of more than 50% of the voting
power at general meetings of Chen Chien Holdings Limited, which
indirectly holds the entire equity interest of CC-SZ, CC-SZ is therefore
a related company of the Group and also a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the
sufficient amount of public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares during the year and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in
line with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate. The Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for the remuneration of
the directors who are also senior management of the Group, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 to 50 of this
annual report.
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Auditor

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chen
Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 194, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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B} EEEEERATIMNEKRER To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(RERZAMEK T2 HRLE]) (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
BARETEEE) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEAEEI RN AELE N

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables and finance lease receivables

JEWE 5 R R RIEW B E T B R 1 (EEF I

As at 31 March 2018, after netting off with an
aggregate impairment provision of HK$89,518,000,
the total net carrying amount of the Group’s trade
and bills receivables and finance lease receivables
was HK$903,003,000. The impairment test is based
on assessment of the recoverability of trade and bills
receivables and finance lease receivables, and requires
significant management judgement and estimates.
Management considers various factors, including the
ageing of the trade and bills receivables and finance
lease receivables, historical collection patterns,
existence of any disputes, trading history with each
customer and other available information concerning
the creditworthiness of customers.

Related disclosures about trade and bills receivables
and finance lease receivables are included in notes 4,
20 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

R-Z—NF=ZA=+—0  E£EENEKEZIRE
BRI K FE U B0 & T & AR U HN KR B 589,518,000
BRI E R E% - 8% 5 A% 903,003,0007T © k& A
ANDERERE S R EEEZRA R B EE R SRR
Al E RS - SRR E L EAHE KA - B
EZERZRERKESREBERTARERRERE
IRFAEREL - LT ERGKS: - FEEAEN - REERNE
FREB S EHMBEATFEELEZMNEM -

BRAEKRES REBRFUARERRERAERRNNE
BIE - N EMTEREMFES - 20822 ©

Our audit procedures included evaluating
management’s assessment methodology, and the
inputs and assumptions applied by management in
performing the impairment assessment by checking
the ageing of trade and bills receivables and finance
lease receivables, the credit terms granted by the
Group, historical collection patterns and post year-
end settlements received from selected samples of
customers.

BB EFERFGEREBNME A - UWER
EHBATEFPRKE S REREFARERREHER
REBREe - BERBEGTZEED  BEENRCHEUAR
HREOERBN - UFHEEEBHEETRENEEKR
AR E R MR
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To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

74

HEEITEEE)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREETHRNTEHMN

Assessment of inventory provision

FRREEEF IS

As at 31 March 2018, the net carrying amount of
the Group’s inventories was HK$802,495,000. The
assessment of inventory provision is based on the
estimated net realisable value of inventories, which
requires significant management judgement and
estimates. Management considers various factors,
including the ageing of the inventories, historical sales
patterns, post year-end sales and selling prices of
inventories, market demand, technological changes and
the Group’s future plan of usage or sale.

Related disclosures about inventories are included in
notes 4 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—HB BEEENTFEFREKBE

#802,495,0007T - FEREBHFEIERFENMGS | BATFENER HRROEANHEEBALERE 2

AERFEET UFERBEHERABRMG - & | ZAEEAN/ REE 2 CHERHETEUNFTHEERE
BEEZERFZEREFENER  BEHEERHE - BIKR | BRRFERBLLEANTEL - URFHEEEBEET
FEHEBANEE MHEFEX KMEENAR &% | FERATIERRANEHMERR

BARKIFEHEANHEETE -

ERFENRESE  SNGEMHERRM 4R -

Qur audit procedures included evaluating
management’s assessment methodology, and the
inputs and assumptions applied by management in
the assessment of the inventory provision by checking
the ageing, the post year-end usage and sale and the
selling prices, of selected samples of inventories, and
assessing management’s expected future demand and
usage of inventories with reference to historical usage
and/or sales pattern, and sales orders received by the
Group.

BB EFERFGERBNMEE - BEEH
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEHEETPROMESRN

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB AR E IS

The goodwill of the Group amounted to HK$94,923,000
as at 31 March 2018. The Group performs an
impairment test for goodwill acquired in business
combinations on an annual basis. Management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill involves estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill is allocated. The assessment process
involved management’s significant judgement and
estimates, including the estimation of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and the
use of other assumptions that are sensitive to expected
future market or economic conditions and the cash-
generating unit's performance in the foreseeable future,
such as the discount rate and growth rate.

Related disclosures about goodwill are included in
notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-NF=A=+—RH  EEENHE/EYK
94,923,000t © EEREREBAFHAGHNBESEE
TRERS - EEEBRRENGERECESEBEZ
ReELBMZERBEELGR - ZHEREERER
HERHE MG BREGRERSELEG ZAS
RRBERE - RIRBETREIT G LN AME IR
SEABUNARARARNRBRZ 2 EMbRE - 0
RERRIERE -

ERBENRESE  SHNGAMBHRERMFARLT -

Qur audit procedures included evaluating
management’s methodologies and key assumptions
used in the discounted cash flow projections, in
particular those relating to the growth rate and discount
rate with the assistance of our valuation experts, and
evaluating management’s assessment on the sensitivity
analysis about the key assumptions and cash flow
projections.

BN ESA EFERFEEEEREFRRSREED

FERZ AR ETEZRR - THEDBRMANGEEZRK L

ET&%EETWFEE’]TEJ?&}E?TE% ARSI EREME
ERJMIEMAKIR SR E 2 GURMETHEETTAE -
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Kwong Ka Yan.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2018
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mealaER Consolidated Income Statement

BE_Z—)N\E=HA=+—BILEE Year ended 31 March 2018
CEMTFoT) (HK$°000) K15t Notes 2018 2017
Uy &5 REVENUE 6 1,667,879 1,450,877
HE AR Cost of sales (1,244,913) (1,071,246)
ESA Gross profit 422,966 379,631
Ha U A RS FEa Other income and gains, net 65,203 53,798
HE RDHEY H Selling and distribution expenses (183,798) (162,696)
TS Administrative expenses (127,129) (112,790)
H bR & 1 FE8 Other operating expenses, net (50,217) (80,906)
A B AN Finance costs 8 (1,248) (1,385)
FE(RHEE A A Share of profits less losses
v IR B 18 of associates 3,366 3,107
BR B AR PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 129,143 78,759
TS Income tax expense 11 (26,312) (27,406)
7R 4 B 35 A PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 102,831 51,353
BER: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RARERFFEA Equity holders of the Company 101,877 51,485
FEIEAR Non-controlling interests 954 (132)
102,831 51,353
FINNET EARNINGS PER SHARE
BEAERLESR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
27 HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
BEARCGEN) Basic (HK cents) 16.2 8.2
B EN) Diluted (HK cents) 16.2 8.2
80 EHMEBABRAT) 2018 Fi CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 March 2018

(E¥For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
EEERF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 102,831 51,353
Hih2mEkE(XH) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
B & BRI E %7 Other comprehensive income/(expenses) to
ST be reclassified to the income statement in
A2 Eas () - subsequent periods:
[ 5, =58 Exchange differences:
BEBINERE Exchange differences on translation of
E =5 foreign operations 229,570 (90,676)
JE(LEEE A E) HAth Share of other comprehensive income/
2EWE(ZH) (expenses) of associates 3,339 (2,830)
1SR H 1% B E# Net other comprehensive income/(expenses)
sEElRRZ M to be reclassified to the income statement in
2EWE(ZH)F5E subsequent periods 232,909 (93,506)
BT @ RA £ 5 Other comprehensive income/(expenses) not
E B et to be reclassified to the income statement in
A2 EWam (FH) - subsequent periods:
TREBMNETZ Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
BE =, (E18) obligations 203 (1,807)
AEEHMEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
Iz () - fIBHE FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 233,112 (95,313)
REEHEIE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
Wz (ZH) FOR THE YEAR 335,943 (43,960)
BER: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RAREREZEE A Equity holders of the Company 333,391 (42,940)
JEFERRRE 2 Non-controlling interests 2,552 (1,020)
335,943 (43,960)
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RZTE-NF=R=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2018

CEMTFoT) (HK$°000) 1% Notes 2018 2017
IRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BB MRE Property, plant and equipment 14 703,147 640,256
WEME Investment properties 15 320,736 281,600
B+ ER Prepaid land lease payments 16 37,330 36,011
(AR Goodwill 17 94,923 94,923
REE RN R ZIE Investments in associates 18 32,627 25,922
REEBRBEEE Deferred tax assets 29 38,170 34,947
BEME  BEK Deposits for purchases of items of

BHEA property, plant and equipment 7,846 2,050
EUE SRR Trade receivables 20 22,588 10,346
B R EHE RN Finance lease receivables 22 2,591 9,575
HHRITFER Pledged bank deposits 23 1,242 1,693
IEmBE E BT Total non-current assets 1,261,200 1,137,323
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 19 802,495 457 941
EUE 5 N EERR Trade and bills receivables 20 844,181 736,473
5 ENFRER Deposits, prepayments and

H b I BR TR other receivables 21 96,862 38,605
RS T E R Finance lease receivables 22 33,643 36,693
R TFR Pledged bank deposits 23 45,755 55,525
RE RBITET Cash and bank balances 24 611,564 852,525
mEEEEET Total current assets 2,434,500 2,177,762
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FENE S NEEIRR Trade and bills payables 25 475,857 356,967
HiEMNIER MESAE Other payables and accruals 26 224,331 191,625
FTERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 24,770 73,422
BRI Tax payable 34,000 37,068
mEABEEET Total current liabilities 758,958 659,082
REEEZRE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,675,542 1,518,680
BEEAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS

RBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,936,742 2,656,003

82 RIEEEARAR 2018 FH
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BEHMERRE 2 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RZE-—NF=A=+—H As at 31 March 2018
(EMTFoT) (HK$’000) K15t Notes 2018 2017
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
EmERRR R Other payables and

ErtAaE accruals 26 2,258 3,041
TEHEEMNET Defined benefit obligations 28 12,251 20,769
EEBIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 39,253 29,669
ERBBERS Total non-current liabilities 53,762 53,479
EEFE NET ASSETS 2,882,980 2,602,524
= EQUITY
EATEREEA Equity attributable to equity holders

LR of the Company
BT Issued share capital 30 63,053 63,053
G Reserves 32 2,804,774 2,526,870

2,867,827 2,589,923
R ER Non-controlling interests 15,153 12,601
ST TOTAL EQUITY 2,882,980 2,602,524
#B%E Lai Yuen CHIANG #EER Chi Kin CHIANG

FEH#EFLEE Chairman and Chief Executive Officer BI=% & Deputy Chairman
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2018

2018
NG ) EnE=2=PN;
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BRI R e (]
I RER 1
Issued Share Capital BERfRE EERE — R
His share premium  redemption Capital Statutory General

(BEFT) (HK$'000) Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve
RZE—+EMA—H At 1 April 2017 63,003 509,580 295 53,035 145,310 2,351
TEE R Profit for the year - - _ _ . _
TEEEB2RE Other comprehensive income

Wi for the year

ERZEER Exchange differences - _ _ _ _ _

TRENERL Actuarial gains on defined

BEYE benefit obligations 28 - - - - _ _

FEEBZA Total comprehensive income

W& for the year - - - - - _
RBEFEH Transfer from retained profits - - - 96 540 -
BE_Z—F Final dividend

“A=+-A1k for the year ended

FEZRERE 31 March 2017 12 - - - - - -
BE_Z—+F Special final dividend

“A=+-A1 for the year ended

FEZRAIRERE 31 March 2017 12 - - - - - -
HERE Interim dividend 12 - - - - - -
W=E-\E=F=+—H At31 March 2018 63,003 509,580* 295* 53,131* 145,850* 2,351%

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in EQuity (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2018

2018
RAREREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEEfR EigE FER
1 1 R
Asset  Exchange REHF Non- B
ffif revaluation  fluctuation Retained @3 controlling Total
(EEFT) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RZE—+EmA—H At 1 April 2017 78,674 124914 1,612,711 2,589,923 12,601 2,602,524
RERRF Profit for the year - - 101,877 101,877 954 102,831
TEERBZE Other comprehensive income
Wi for the year:
EHES Exchange differences - 231311 - 231311 1,598 232,909
TRRAELL Actuarial gains on defined
EEE benefit obligations 28 - - 203 203 - 203
KERBZA Total comprehensive income
e for the year - 231311 102,080 333,391 2,552 335,943
RER R R Transfer from retained profits - - (636) - - _
BE_Z—tF Final dividend
ZA=+-Ait for the year ended
FEZREKRE 31 March 2017 12 - - (16,394) (16,394) - (16,394)
BHE_Z—+F Special final dividend
ZA=+-Ait for the year ended
ERZRHIRHARS 31 March 2017 12 - - (20,177) (20,177) - (20,177)
PHRE Interim dividend 2 - - (18916) (18916) - (18916)
RZE-\F=A=+—H At3l March 2018 78,674* 356,225* 1,608,668 2,867,827 15,153 2,882,980

7] 2018 F#
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in EQuity (continuea)
Year ended 31 March 2018

2017
NG ) EnE=2=PN;
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRI R e (]

I RER 1
Issued Share Capital BRRE EERE — Rt
His share premium  redemption Capital Statutory General
(BEFT) (HK$'000) Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve
RZE—"ENA—H At 1 April 2016 63,003 509,580 295 52,751 144,999 2,351
KEERH/ (BE) Profit/(loss) for the year - - - - - _

TEEAMZE Other comprehensive expenses

it for the year:

ERZEER Exchange differences - _ _ _ _ _

TRENERL Actuarial losses on defined

BEEE benefit obligations 28 - - - - _ _
FEEBZA Total comprehensive income/

Wi/ (%) (expenses) for the year - - - _ - _
{RER R e Transfer from retained profits - - - 284 311 -
HEZS—F Final dividend for

“A=+-A1k the year ended

FEZRERE 31 March 2016 12 - - - - - -
BHE-Z—1F Special final dividend

“A=+-A1 for the year ended

FEZRAIRERE 31 March 2016 12 - - - - - -
HERE Interim dividend 12 - - - - - -
BR—BHBAR Dividend paid to a

FERRERS non-controlling shareholder

of a subsidiary - - - - - _
W-E—+&E=FA=1+—H At31 March 2017 63,003 509,580* 295* 53,035* 145,310* 2,351%

* ZERBREREGAMBMRIRAZ
#ARB 2 804,774,000 ( — B —+4F : B

2,526,870,0007T) °

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H
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*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$2,804,774,000 (2017: HK$2,526,870,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in EQuity (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2018

2017
RAREREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEEfR EigE FER
1 1 B
Asset  Exchange REHF Non- B
ffif revaluation  fluctuation Retained @3 controlling Total
(EEFT) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RZE—"ENA—H At 1 April 2016 78,674 217,532 1,596,415 2,665,650 16,421 2,682,071
KEEEH/ (BE) Profit/(loss) for the year - - 51,485 51,485 (132) 51,353
TEEAMEE Other comprehensive expenses

it for the year:

ERER Exchange differences - (92,618) - (92,618) (888) (93,506)

TRENERL Actuarial losses on defined

REBE benefit obligations 28 - - (1,807) (1,807) - (1,807)
KERBZA Total comprehensive income/

i/ (%) (expenses) for the year - (92,618) 49,678 (42,940) (1,020) (43,960)
RER R R Transfer from retained profits - - (595) - - _
BE_Z-F Final dividend

ZA=+-Ait for the year ended

ERZAERE 31 March 2016 12 - - (3,783) (3783) - (3783)
BHE_ZT-—F Special final dividend

ZA=+-Aik for the year ended

FEZRAIRERE 31 March 2016 12 - - (20,177) (20,177) - (20,177)
PHRE Interim dividend 12 - - (8,827) (8,827) - (8,827)
BR—BHEAR Dividend paid to a

FERRERS non-controlling shareholder

of a subsidiary - - - - (2,800) (2,800)
RZE—+F=A=+—H At3l March 2017 78,674* 124914*  1612,711* 2,589,923 12,601 2,602,524
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March 2018

(GE#For) (HK$°000) K12 Notes 2018 2017
REXK RS CASH FLOWS FROM

RE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B A5 B & Profit before tax 129,143 78,759
FHE Adjustments for:

A& KA Finance costs 8 1,248 1,385

FEMRES A B T Share of profits less losses of

JBE e associates (3,366) (3,107)
MBI A Interest income 7 (9,996) (10,677)
MERERBRHA Finance lease interest income 7 (2,449) (1,729)
e Depreciation 7 53,951 52,708
TEf LA &K Amortization of prepaid land lease

a3 payments 7 1,383 1,395
HEWE BEN Loss on disposal of items of property,

BBz EE plant and equipment 7 27 1,128
) E N Write-off of items of property,

ZiEEE plant and equipment 7 2,248 251
SERBEZTHE Write-off of aged liabilities 7 (354) (201)
wEMEZ N VE Fair value gains on investment

Wz properties 7 (8,512) (7,086)
FERE(BERR) Provision/(write-back of provision)

HEE for inventories, net 7 (4,415) 13,967
BUINE 5 Mk EHEERRK Write-back of impairment of trade

SB[ F 58 and bills receivables, net 7 (1,583) (6,865)
W R E HE R Impairment of finance lease

NERE] receivables 7 1,050 602
Hith U R FORE, Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

CRERE ) F58E of other receivables, net 7 (1,934) 514

156,441 121,044
FERELE) Decrease/(increase) in inventories (307,500) 30,106
EWE 5 REBERR Increase in trade and bills

N receivables (61,808) (96,365)
JE W i & FH & AR R Decrease/(increase) in finance

SHA (1) lease receivables 13,403 (25,602)
A& BRREREA Increase in deposits,

JE Uk BE i prepayments and other receivables (54,193) (1,021)
BT E 5 R EIRRFUE I Increase in trade and bills payables 92,459 91,551
H A R R FEET Increase in other payables

B fEIBM and accruals 20,181 11,463
EfENE TR Decrease in defined benefit obligations (9,019) (1,974)

88 EIEEEARAR 2018 FH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continuea)
Year ended 31 March 2018

GEEFor) (HK$'000) K12 Notes 2018 2017
KEELS/ ()28 s Cash generated from/(used in) operations (150,036) 129,202
2 F B Interest paid (1,248) (1,385)
EREERETE Finance lease interest received 2,449 1,729
ROFBFEH Hong Kong profits tax refunded - 3
BENBEEFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid - (13)
R BN IE Overseas taxes refunded 874 2,400
BAEINIE Overseas taxes paid (24,937) (20,920)
KEEBoRE Net cash flows from/(used in)

mA O ) 88 operating activities (172,898) 111,016
REEKR RS CASH FLOWS FROM

nE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEDE BE Purchases of items of property,

e plant and equipment 33(a) (57,462) (9,257)
NEREWE Additions to investment properties 15 (224) (236)
HEWE  BWENMKE Proceeds from disposal of items of

PR e property, plant and equipment 253 544
BHFE Interest received 9,996 10,677
H—EE R AR E Dividend received from an associate - 10,929
BEWE  BE Increase in deposits for

BRIyl purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment 33(a) (7,846) (2,050)
T R BE B FR ER O A Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits

BR=EA Z EHFR with original maturity of more than

A (3Ehn) three months when acquired 91,742 (16,281)
HEIRIRITIF R Decrease/(increase) in pledged

A () bank deposits 16,398 (5,995)
KEXK 2B Net cash flows from/(used in)

A G ) F58 investing activities 52,857 (11,669)
MEXB RS CASH FLOWS FROM

RE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
HERITER New bank loans 53,792 74514
BRIRITER Repayment of bank loans (103,792) (106,514)
AT E Dividends paid (55,487) (32,787)
[EANEEZ e Dividend paid to a non-controlling

iz B shareholder of a subsidiary - (2,800)
BEER ISR ERE Net cash flows used in financing activities (105,487) (67,587)
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BOHERER ® Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continuea)

HE-Z—-N\F=ZA=+—HIL&EE Year ended 31 March 2018
CEMTFoT) (HK$°000) K75+ Notes 2018 2017
ReRBESLEEBYZ NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN

®m, CRL)RE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (225,528) 31,760
FPzRER Cash and cash equivalents

ReEEY at beginning of year 769,722 775,935
[EREE) & Effect of foreign exchange rate

JFRE changes, net 67,370 (37,973)
FRZBEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

HEZEY AT END OF YEAR 611,564 769,722
HENRESZEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF

EFEZDN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
He RIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 24 541,313 730,988
AT SR B B TR AR B Bank deposits with original maturity of

TR=M@AZE8BER less than three months when acquired 24 70,251 38,734
RAERERER Cash and cash equivalents as stated

oz ie kRe in the consolidated statement of

HEY cash flows 611,564 769,722
AT R BE B PR HR O B Bank deposits with original maturity of

iR =1E A 2 EHEFER more than three months when acquired 24 - 82,803
RE B ER Cash and bank balances as stated in

oz R e & the consolidated statement of

RITEETE financial position 611,564 852,525
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2018

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai
Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the
manufacture and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and
related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated
in the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH
Investments”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the
Company’s immediate holding company.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 195
to 198.

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties which
have been measured at fair value. Defined benefit obligations
are measured using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method as further explained in note 3 to the financial statements.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000)
except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

21 RBEEE) 2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

92

REEE

REMBBRRBEARARAREME AT
(2HFRAAKEDBEE-F—/\F=
A=1T—ALFEZHHEHRE - HERF
RARNFERSAMEENNER(BEE
BUEER) EAKEH2EKREHRE
505 B Ol AR R s F A RN A K 58
BRHREHROEN (A KERE T
BAENATEREH AR
R B2 S BRI - RIS 2 HlE o

MARBEZRXEZHE I NREHRKA
ZERERBUENNER - AIAREER
HEEEARAYREHRNENRS
B—UIHEREEERER - 835

(a) BREHREMBREREANEGHL
B

(b) EAbEKLHATELNER R

(c) REBEMRKEENBERTRE -

MEARM B RRERAEARR BN
AHERRIRAR R RRS - B ARXRE
BAKEESESEZAEREAR B
EEHIRELEZAL -

B & BB m DR ERAER - W
BREEMEERANSEEXLD NS
BERARERE A NI ER - 1B
HEASEKERRERZBERNEEAR
AHEEERAE  #E A FAXER
ERMENGEAKRE R -

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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BTSRRI 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—Z-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018

2.1 mHERE(E) 2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
BEEEE) Basis of consolidation (continued)
METNRIERERNA T =8 HT= The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
PR —HKZETEEZS A AEES facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
BT HE L AR EE KA IR - more of the three elements of control described above. A change
i fE Sk 14 - BB AR 2 A R in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
EmEEE AR AERR S ° accounted for as an equity transaction.
WA B KL B AR 1T Hl#E - Rlak If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
IHEROZMB AR ZEE(RERE) X the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
B1E - ()EAT IR %5 2~ BR T E M (i) (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
P AT 2 BRMHAEZTE + RERO) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
BWREBZAFE  (WVTREBEMAKE recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
ZAFERINEANELERAESEECRE fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
BRECETAL o AT EM 2 E AR BRA or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
RNEFEFELSLSBETER  IRHAER previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
BEELEREEEXBEMERNIER reclassified to the income statement or retained profits, as
HESHHOEEWRIRIRE HEMN (@ appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
B o had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

22EHBRREESD 2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

REBRKNEENAERRGRNEMNAT The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
USR] 2 2R o time for the current year’s financial statements.
BB ER
F75(BET) wEE Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
E125% (1B3ET) FLoK B E IR R Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
BT IR E for Unrealised Losses
EEMBE®RE REREMERE Amendments to HKFRS Disclosure of Interests in Other
AR - 1255 #as BB 12 included in Annual Entities: Clarification of the Scope
(&3] BIEFE B A ER Improvements to HKFRSs ~ of HKFRS 12
BBV RS E12%m#E 2014-2016 Cycle

AE I 1) 4F S B
(2014-20164
JEEE) A
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(b) BAGTERFI2H(ERT)BRHHA
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BEPIREHN AN EREREN
R A] AR VR A 40 0 B SR A B Y SRR
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(A EEE AR R B AR A R R 35 3l - I
FRAR ISR A A] B FE UL B R B B
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BEMAHREREZERNZFETR
BANEE  BERZFEITHAE
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BEMBHREENEI2HR(ERT)ER
BEMBHREERNEI2RZRERE
(BEAEMBHRELAFI2HKEBIOE
BleBR z EMERIN) @RANEE

(c)

RHERR] - AERERBE QAN
- IERDBESFELERIIRN
DEAFFEHENTHEENINEER
Bl E R A NES - AR AKER
T2 N\F=ZA=+-HAEESER
FIELENHEERNNHB LR -
It ZFETHASRENM BRI

7
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the amendments are described

below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. Disclosure of the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities is provided in note 33(b) to the financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs
to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal
of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets
for more than their carrying amount. The amendments have
had no impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group as the Group has no deductible temporary differences
or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure
requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12, apply
to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate, or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale or included in a
disposal group classified as held for sale. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group’s financial statements as
the Group did not have subsidiaries classified as a disposal
group held for sale as at 31 March 2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

31 March 2018

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts!

Financial Instruments?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers!

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers!?

Leases?

Insurance Contracts3
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)

31 March 2018

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement2

Long-term Interests In Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property!
Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28!

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 232

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 OREERBIARBH - ERHIRA

EREHERRAEENT B BRELE
AEE— P ERHN T
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4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



g e

—ZE-N\F=ZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

230 EREVRMNE BV K HRE%.R 2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS
9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group will not
restate comparative information and will recognize any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2018. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has
performed an assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
9. The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will
have a significant impact on the classification and measurement
of its financial assets. The expected impacts arising from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 relate to the impairment requirements are
summarized as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on
an expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or
a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach and
record lifetime expected losses that are estimated based on the
present values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of
its trade and bills receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply
the general approach and record twelve-month expected credit
losses that are estimated based on the possible default events on
its other receivables within the next twelve months. The Group
expects that the adoption of the standard will have no significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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23CEMEREMNE B HFHREZAER 2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

98

(&)

BB BRELERNFIHFN T —MOF+
A% - RAZMALEN - UHEFE
KW ANETTIIR - REBEEBM GRS LR
E155% - WARBERRERTARAAETP
HREMIRBIER M A RESHRE
SRER - EAVBREEAFISHHR
ARt 8 RERWARREE NGRS
& o R BRI ARBEE R EERER
E o BRERARBARRE  BREOES
TRBENENEERBERBGHRNE
AR E ZHE R AR ER o ZERH
BREBVBREERNBTAAEREEA
ERARTE - IRERZERREEETE
TED (203 1 8 PR sl AR S B M BR A - 0 —
E—RERA BEGHMASRMNEE
SRR B 155 (BR]) - DAL RO
AIBAEME - ZFEABRNRIEAN L ABE
RERF R M ARSI A MBI B R A -
ZEERNRIGHEREERRATEY
B EERIFE 155 EEE 1 — BUHE A
N[ E R A BRI A RERHE - K
SEGEIRMNEHBIREERIF 155 28
BERERRANR 2 RBZERAL/N
—ZT-N\FOA-BRBBEN OGS
ZHHBIERB o I AEEFEER-F
—N\FOA—BRIARTXZ AL ERFR
E e BEIBRMBEHE S (CE—FREN
T) R E R E B W 5 3RS RIS 155R 5K
VPR —E-N\FHUA—RELZEEE
HENAEEBE_T-NF=ZA=1—
HENFBHRRERTE BE-_FT N\
FZAZ+T—BLMRFE  AEECDY
KRB B U REERIE1SRE N EE
1TaHE -

o

RIEEEARAR 2018 F

B

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and
estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is required on
the initial application of the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA
issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation
issues on identifying performance obligations, application
guidance on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also intended to
help ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying the
standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 15 to recognize the cumulative effect of initial adoption
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
at 1 April 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements only to contracts that are not completed before
1 April 2018. The expected changes in accounting policies, as
further explained below, will have impact on the transitional
adjustment to be made on 1 April 2018 upon initial adoption of
HKFRS 15 and on the Group’s financial statements from the year
ending 31 March 2019 onwards. During the year ended 31 March
2018, the Group has performed an assessment on the impact of
the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group’s principal activities consist of the manufacture and
sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
The expected impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 15 on
the Group are summarized as follows:

(a) Sales with financing components

Generally, the Group's trading terms with its customers are
either cash on delivery, bank bills or on credit. For contracts
with certain customers, the Group allows the customers
to settle the trade receivables by installments with credit
periods of 12 months to 24 months in general (“Installment
Contracts”). Those trade receivables are interest-bearing.
The Group recognizes the entire contract amount as revenue
when significant risks and rewards associated with the
plastic injection moulding machines and related products
are transferred to customers, generally upon delivery of the
goods. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has to
determine whether there is a significant financing component
in contracts with customers. For Installment Contracts, the
Group concluded that they contain a financing component
because of the length of time between when the customers
pay for the goods and when the Group transfers goods to
the customers, as well as the prevailing interest rates in
the market. The transaction price for those contracts will
be determined by discounting the amount of promised
consideration using the appropriate discount rate. The Group
has determined that when HKFRS 15 is adopted, there would
be no significant impact on the financial performance of the
Group.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15
are more detailed than those under the current HKAS 18. The
presentation requirements represent a significant change from
current practice and will significantly increase the volume
of disclosures required in the Group’s financial statements.
Many of the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are new
and the Group has assessed that the impact of some of these
disclosure requirements will be significant. As required by
HKFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate revenue recognized
from contracts with customers into categories that depict
how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows are affected by economic factors. It will also
disclose information about the relationship between the
disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue information
disclosed for each reportable segment.

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class
of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on
the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS
17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and
is considering whether it will choose to take advantage of the
practical expedients available and which transition approach
and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 35(b) to the
financial statements, at 31 March 2018, the Group had future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in aggregate of approximately HK$4,887,000. Upon adoption of
HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need to be
recognized as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Further
analysis, however, will be needed to determine the amount of
new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to be recognized,
including, but not limited to, any amounts relating to leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases, other practical expedients
and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered into before the date of
adoption.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of other aforementioned new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have any significant impact on its
financial performance and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognizes
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognized in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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3. FEEHHEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognized in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergy of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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3. FESHBEREZ) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(¥REHEEEE) Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the

HIEERTE - relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
NEEFE Fair value measurement
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The Group measures its investment properties at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong - Over the lease terms

Buildings outside Hong Kong - 15 to 60 years

Plant, machinery, furniture and - 2 to 15 years

other equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognized is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
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(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as movements in the
asset revaluation reserve.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognized initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization
and the loss arising from impairment are recognized in the income
statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognized in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (i) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (ii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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(continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortization.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and
bank deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and bank deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.
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(continued)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognized based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognized outside the income statement is
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the income statement over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3. XEETERBEE)

g Revenue recognition
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Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

THIEZEALR measured reliably, on the following bases:
Hj%iéiu%ﬁﬁ EEmERRE L KRED (a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
RBEENEEEREER Z]X% of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
B ERIFHEZE Em¥ERER that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to

PEET
FAREERLENRTLDITH the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

(b) REEWEEDIREIRTSE (b) service fee income, when the services have been rendered:;
(c) %lJ S A AT B A 3 4% fE 5T A 2ERE (c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective

R BEREMNEZRFTRENSHIATE
uﬂ'ﬁ%ﬁ% 1Eu‘|'5ﬁ;'5£ﬁimb Iiﬁ%ﬁ‘i

interest rate method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of

BEIREFE the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;
(d) AR BLARR SR UL ER 50 I8 2 FI e ST B (d) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment has been established;
(e) HEWAREEFHRNILEBELHI{E (e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
R terms; and

MEREWANERN RIZETEE
BR - BERNEXRNRENRERE
BB F R TR AT A B S R AR (10
ER)FTBEARRBESRAZRE
HERIREFRERmFE -
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finance lease income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
net investment of the finance lease or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the net investment
of the finance lease.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018 123



B HmRME @

—Z-N\F=ZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

3. FEEHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

124

HE

REEMARZ KD B HmERRE OXE
PRERERIN B T AKE 2 HENHIIE
MEME  -BMEMEVH  RIENEE
FTEBEEMABHEEERAN - I
HEE(TERENEEHD ) —Hroir ARk
BELRERBR BEAMBMEHETHA
ZEREREREESRANIHES)IIA
WE - BEMRE  RHEHPRREEZ G
AEAFEHmE cBREENE - 2EHE
ZHBERZEANA R Z EE L X
E 6Tkl

EHEAMEMECHBANKBZEE
DB EHEEAR - EREERFHRT
= .

HMAEEELSREEHELEAR - &8
Yo iH & IR B A B B AN 2 SRR 7%
FRRINER KB EEERN - &ZEW
HEFE - T EERANERIRE 2 5
HERARMEIZ B ERA o RERIZ 7
WAEMEHARBERN AR -

NEERA R PA B H %R A1)
BHEAMBEZHEDINEEEHE - 2
AEEJEHEA  BAEENEEHEE
HRBEEFAFRBEE  IREBELEH
SARKESRAEREERNEEFHALE
WamRPETA o WEREEREEA - 8
REBEEHEAINESREREENE
EFEHREREERFIIX -

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H

(continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalized at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalized finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease receivables and initial direct
costs is included in the statement of financial position as finance
lease receivables. The difference between the sum of the
minimum lease receivables, initial direct costs and their present
value is recognized as unearned finance income. Unearned
finance income is recognized over the period of the lease using
the effective interest rate method.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

RETHE NTEN TR E AR IR AT Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
iR ERRAHNEGEERER - stated at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line

basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalized. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognized in the income statement. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive
income or the income statement is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or the income statement, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Employee benefits

(a) Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3. XEETERBEE)

EBEERNE) Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Rk qZ(4E) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
(the “DCRB Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible
and had elected to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The
DCRB Scheme operates in a similar way to the MPF Scheme,
except that when an employee leaves the Group prior to his/
her interest in the DCRB Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group would be reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme (the
“Central Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal
government. The contributions payable by these subsidiaries
to the Central Scheme, which are based on a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees, are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Central Scheme.

As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the
Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined
benefit pension scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make
monthly contributions to the retirement fund to meet
employees’ retirement and termination benefits entitlements.
The fund is administered by the Employees’ Retirement Fund
Committee (the “Committee”) and is deposited under the
Committee’s name with a government approved financial
institution, which acts as the trustee. The cost of providing
pension benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3. FEEHEHRBER)

EERFI(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Rk 5Z(4E) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Remeasurements arising from the Old Scheme, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the income statement in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the income statement at
the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

e the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related
costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
under “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses”
and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-

routine settlements

e Net interest expense or income
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(continued)

BERFI(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a) BikzitZ (&) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related
pension scheme regulations by adding a new contributory
pension scheme (the “New Scheme”) in the Labour Pension
Act, which became effective on 1 July 2005. According to
the amended retirement regulations, the employees could
choose to either select the New Scheme or to stay with the
Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the New
Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
compensation to the government designated account since
the election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still
liable under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the
service years prior to 1 July 2005.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income
statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end
of that period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognized. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognized for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3. XEETERBEE)

Employee benefits (continued)

BERFI(E)

(b) ERBENZ XS (E) (b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

B ARBHE ST SR G SRS - RARIER
BEREHERCHEB - MR =R
EROEM LS ARER - LB
ANEBASESEEZENBERNZ
FERB IR S S 2 BB I HE - AT -
fis) 5 85 ) ¥R BN A (R RO FT 3R BN
WHE RFEHE AOBRRB - Bl
TR R B & 10 E B Pt AR R
BHRMETRHE -

RITEBRENE T E S ARIN
NEEAR - SHEERAF -

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per

share.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

4, ERSTHER G E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

FIE (&) Judgements (continued)

(b) 7IREE B EZEZ HIH (b) Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends

AEBERERERREEBREGE
SERERLE THIEB AR P IR 2 BLE AT
RMEH - DRSS D
H - AEBRL  WERAIELZ
AR @M T EDIR - A BAE RN
i o

(c) REYENEBYFEL2] 7

AEEEE -BVNEEETNARED
EERK - WEBIEEH LA
8] - HEMERESRBMEEHEART
EXMERGSMIHTAOYE - Bt
AEBEE-BENEEENRTAE
EERARE LBYRAEEFEHN
HibEE - —LWEo T RMIVE
EREATHEMIBE  ME—HIR
AREEREHERIMBRITHEA
BMEFA - WEEFDADRLER
REBEHRESREME  BAREY
ZER DB o Wz FEED T EE
PRALE  AIRBESBREERE
P o SR AT & T 15 8 HO 2B
DTBEBRNBERT - ZWENTBIRE
WME - HERHSERMEEL - U
BERERBETNLEZEASEYE
TREREMENER

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends
from certain subsidiaries according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend. The Group considered that if the
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future, then
no withholding taxes should be provided.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(d) Classification between finance leases and operating leases

Leases are required to be classified as either finance leases
(which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, and give rise to asset and liability recognition
by the lessee and a receivable by the lessor) and operating
leases (which result in expense recognition by the lessee, with

the asset remaining recognized by the lessor).

Situations that would normally lead to a lease being classified

as a finance lease include the following:

the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by
the end of the lease term;

the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price
which is expected to be sufficiently lower that the fair
value at the date the option becomes exercisable and, at
the inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the
option will be exercised;

the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of
the asset, even if title is not transferred:

at the inception of the lease, the present value of the
minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially
all of the fair value of the leased asset; or

the leased assets are of a specialized nature such that

only the lessee can use them without major modifications
being made.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

31 March 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are described as below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

He B EmECReELEU 2
REEFELGE - AEHERAEBEEX
AEBYKERCEHEM 2 RHAR
KRS REEL G TREESE
Tﬁfﬁ$&i E$u‘|’g—:;§$ imuiz
BE -RZE-—NF=A=+—8
78 2 IR E &% 94,923,000 7T

—+4F : #%94,923,0007T) °
E R 2 FEB DI FELT

(b) FFERE R IGAT

AEBZEREEMBAREFE

SO WFRKBREFEERAZ
FRE B 8 A # IR EIELL R - R

AEBEZEREERAZEEBEN
Bk MRRGFEHERALE
B MmEHRE  KMEEUARAREE
ARFENERARHES - HEW
ERBTEEREH TMRE RFH
ZTA B R B AT RRRE - s
TEHETATFHERETE @ AR
TRAREHTMEHAIZREFE
KR AR R -

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

(b)

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate and growth rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
March 2018 was HK$94,923,000 (2017: HK$94,923,000).
More details of the impairment assessment are given in note
17.

Estimation regarding inventory provision

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing
analysis on a periodic basis for those aged inventories.
This involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged
inventory items with the respective net realizable value. In
addition, management of the Group considers various factors,
including historical sales patterns, post year-end sales and
selling prices of inventories, market demand, technological
changes and the Group’s future plan of usage or sale to
ascertain whether impairment is required to be made in
the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving
items. Physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether any provision is
required to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective
inventories identified.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

4., ERGHHERMEETE) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

5.
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ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c) Estimation regarding impairment of trade and bills receivables
and finance lease receivables

In determining whether impairment of trade and bills
receivables and finance lease receivables is required, the
Group takes into consideration the ageing status, historical
collection patterns, existence of any disputes, trading
history with each customer and other available information
concerning the creditworthiness of customers. Following the
identification of objective evidence for potential impairment of
debts, the responsible personnel will discuss with the relevant
customers and report to management on the recoverability.
Impairment allowance is only made for those impaired
receivables that are unlikely to be collected.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of
plastic injection moulding machines and related products. For
management purposes, the Group is organized into business units
based on the geographical locations of customers and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) Mainland China and Hong Kong;

(ii) Taiwan; and

(iii) Other overseas countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, unallocated income and
gains, finance costs, share of profits less losses of associates
and corporate and unallocated expenses are excluded from such
measurement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets exclude investments in associates, deferred tax
assets and cash and bank balances except pledged bank deposits.
Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities.

There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.

The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets,
liabilities and expenditure information for the Group’s operating
segments for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

RUNEFH
pax:d 6
Segment revenue PEEE

from external customers Segment results
(BEFTL) (HK$'000) 2018 2017 2018 2017
REKEREE Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,121,158 1,016,325 125,810 80,874
=y Taiwan 125,583 101,161 4,849 4,440
Ht R Other overseas countries 421,138 333,391 17,922 11,414

1,667,879 1,450,877 148,581 96,728
BEFDEBRRBA Reconciliation of results of operating segments

RABHNT to profit before tax is as follows:

REnHEE Operating segment results 148,581 96,728
RED WA Rz Unallocated income and gains 12,445 12,406
PERAES T Corporate and unallocated expenses (34,001) (32,097)
BEKK Finance costs (1,248) (1,385)
E(RB A DR RER Share of profits less losses of associates 3,366 3,107
B AN Profit before tax 129,143 78 759

HEEBERR AR 2018 F3;
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

IHEE AHaf

Segment assets Segment liabilities
(EETFT) (HK$'000) 2018 2017 2018 2017
REREREE Mainland China and Hong Kong 2,543,604 2,032,133 573,938 469,278
=) Taiwan 142,869 118,533 34,877 35,038
HngIER Other overseas countries 326,866 251,025 105,882 68,086
3,013,339 2,401,691 714,697 572,402
N YNIE ¥ Investments in associates 32,627 25,922 - -
FENEE Unallocated assets 649,734 887,472 - -
AEDAR Unallocated liabilities - - 98,023 140,159
3,695,700 3,315,085 812,720 712,561

A2 PER
Other segment information
BRUERNR/ (BE)
AfbFne WEEFETE
EREH %t/ (KA) Impairment losses A%
Depreciation and Other non-cash charged/(written-back) in the Capital
amortization expenses/(income) income statement, net expenditure

(88771) (HK$'000) 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
hEAEREE Mainland China and Hong Kong 50,018 50877 (6,579) (5889 (5923) 919 52,599 9,030
a Taiwan 1,266 1,246 - 3% (790) (592) 2,431 749
HBINER Other overseas countries 4,050 1980 (12) (54) (169) (388) 4,706 692
55,334 54,103 (6,591) (b908)  (6,882) 8218 59,736 10471

138

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



g e

—ZE-N\F=ZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

5. KRESER (&) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

kRBEE
Non-current assets
(BE¥For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
AR K B B Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,102,049 989,472
=y Taiwan 94,259 90,933
Hi g R Other overseas countries 301 357
1,196,609 1,080,762

B ZIFRBEEERTIREEME R
HRECHAEER R TAME -

IREFZER

E-F—/\R-T—tF=A=1—8
LFE - RE—HINES 2 X BRI
AREBKEG 2 BS 2 AL -

iy 28

WettE FRZIHERRFE - MERER
BN MAEREEAREHZIRS -

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets and financial
instruments.

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no revenue from
transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue.

6. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold during
the year, after allowances for returns and trade discounts,
excluding intra-group transactions.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)

31 March 2018

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2IF

(BB FT) (HK$'000) Kzt Notes 2018 2017
EHFERAK Cost of inventories sold 1,244,913 1,071,246
e Depreciation 14 53,951 52,708
FEf TR E Amortization of prepaid land lease

a3 payments 16 1,383 1,395
HEDE  BEX Loss on disposal of items of property,

Rt EE plant and equipment* 27 1,128
mE - BEKEREZ Write-off of items of property,

EXi-N plant and equipment* 14 2,248 251
KEHE N2 &P Minimum lease payments under

FERHERIES B operating leases 5,253 5,399
MR EFEBER Research and development costs*** 42,117 38,785
BT A B x /x*** Government grants*/**** (13,005) (6,514)
ZEEN BN & Auditor’s remuneration 2,329 2,227
ETwRFAEZH(EZ/ME  Employee benefit expenses (excluding

BRoN—M1229) - directors’ emoluments — note 9):

TE R Wages and salaries 266,100 214,127

BRIREFHEIHER Pension scheme contributions

(FrEftst2) (defined contribution scheme) 24,410 20,701

RIREETEI A Pension scheme costs (defined

(FEERFETE) benefit scheme) 28 599 603
BUINE 5 M EERRK Write-back of impairment of trade and

BB FEE bills receivables, net*** 20 (1,583) (6,865)
FERE CRERR) Provision/(write-back of provision) for

SRR inventories, net** (4,415) 13,967
el E & E IR Impairment of finance lease

D= receivables*** 22 1,050 602
b B AR TR Impairment/(write-back of

BIE, CREFREE) impairment) of other receivables,

Pt R net*** 21 (1,934) 514
PE W = B FE ™ Foreign exchange differences, net*** 3,594 42,809
"EME 2 NFE Fair value gains on investment

g z5 properties* 15 (8,512) (7,086)
BRAMEZHSKA Gross rental income on

BE* owner-occupied properties* (2,657) (1,764)
B HERYERIIS  Less: Direct operating expenses

EECHEE arising from rental-earning
KBRS owner-occupied properties 201 81
BERYMECHS Net rental income on
W ASFE 58 owner-occupied properties (2,456) (1,683)
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BTSRRI 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—Z-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018
7. BFHANER(EZ) 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)
RNERZBRBINEF B, (GTA) 5 The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
RIE : (4E) (continued)
(BB FT) (HK$'000) Hiat Notes 2018 2017
BREYEZHSWA Gross rental income on
BE investment properties* (22,466) (21,429)
B IR EEBEES  Less: Direct operating expenses
EEZERSERE arising from rental-earning
investment properties 1,651 1,200
wEME AN Net rental income on
THER investment properties (20,815) (20,229)
F B YA Interest income* (9,996) (10,677)
RMERER BB A Finance lease interest income* (2,449) (1,729)
SR A E T Write-off of aged liabilities* (354) (201)
* ZEHEBEBREAGAERTmR I EMK *  These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the
AR FEEIA - face of the consolidated income statement.
= ZIBEEERERGEERERZIHEERA] **  This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
A o income statement.
o ZERBEBRERERERER 2 HMmg *** These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the
B HFEIA - face of the consolidated income statement.
xR EPAR B AR R E B AR % ****\/arious government grants have been received mainly for setting up
HBFHE - WEIREFTRED - W3 M research activities in Mainland China. Conditions or contingencies
BEARER 2 GHESREETEAERER relating to these grants are fulfilled and they are not deducted
HBh 2 BRI S UT AL - B R R E At I from the related costs which they are intended to compensate, but
A o fin A RSB 6 ISR 47 B T UC BC 9 AR R recorded in other income. Government grants received for which
S M AR B AR SR T A R R R B IR - R related expenditure has not yet been incurred or to which there were
& B R PIERT A B IR unfulfilled conditions are included in “Other payables and accruals”
RIETAEINR - on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position.
8. MEMA 8. FINANCE COSTS
(B For) (HK$°000) 2018 2017
SR1ITE B Interest on bank loans 1,248 1,385
EHEEBR AT 2018 Ff CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018 141

B —



B IR R 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—E-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018
9. EEHM 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
*ETFJ:W%E Bl & & & A& H1 25383(1) Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
(a) ~ ORMBARARI(HKEES Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
ﬂ’\ﬁﬂ)%ﬁ |ZE20 80 + FIRNE B H I Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
BT Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:
(BE¥TFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
we Fees:
WITES Executive directors - -
BWUIENITES Independent non-executive directors 880 880
HEEm Other emoluments:
e R EEYMA = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 11,192 11,039
%fﬁﬁﬂf’] PEFAN Performance related bonuses 9209 625
RIREFTEIHEER Pension scheme contributions 72 72
13,053 12,616
(a) BAKEHITES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FRN - X FBIIERIT The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
FEMHESWT the year were as follows:
(B¥For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
BREE 4 Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 215 215
Anish LALVANISE 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 230 230
PR S BT A Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 215 215
MFERE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 220 220
880 880
FRN - WEEMHFNEZS TRELIED There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
TEE(ZZ—+F  8|E) - non-executive directors during the year (2017: Nil).
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BTSRRI 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

T )\F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2018
9. EEFME) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) BITES (b) Executive directors
2018
e
BER
Yl 3] Bfhe
Salaries, B St
allowances  Performance Pension Hfast
#%  and benefits related scheme Total
(BEF) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  emoluments
BEEL Dr. Chen CHIANG* - 4,041 337 - 4378
BERTT Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,537 213 18 2,768
BE2AE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,886 130 18 2,034
BURLE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,568 132 18 1,718
REELE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,160 97 18 1,275
- 11,192 909 72 12,173
2017
e
EER
BNRE E3:] Eihe
Salaries, BaRA HEEE
allowances  Performance Pension @t
#4%  and benefits related scheme Total
(BEFT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  emoluments
BEEL Dr. Chen CHIANG* - 4,041 236 - 4277
BEhaL Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,481 145 18 2,644
B2 Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,849 89 18 1,956
BUREHE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,534 89 18 1,641
REEGHE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,134 66 18 1218
- 11,039 625 7 11,736
R IE-N\FENA-+=B(REH *  Dr. Chen CHIANG retired as chairman and executive director
Kig)  BEBLIRETBRATE and has been appointed as honorary chairman subsequent to
EWEZTAEELE - the end of the reporting period on 23 April 2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

9. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

The emoluments of the executive directors fell within the
following bands:

EEAH
Number of directors
GBEB) (HK$) 2018 2017
1,000,001-1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001-2,000,000 1 2
2,000,001-2,500,000 1 -
2,500,001-3,000,000 1 1
4.000,001-4,500,000 1 1
5 5

ER_ZET)N\FE 2HReRERY
2 ZRTEFERABEREIRE
EAXFH  EEAEEEXBHHFES
ke FR AERTEFAEEER
FMOERREORION(ZF—+
F:10%) - ERTEFERREER -
WITEFZEAFHFHEREEARR
B 2 RBEKF -

FRARETELSTESHH R
EHEITIMAREESAERIMNAREE
B2 T - SREERAE o
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Due to the adverse effects of the global financial tsunami
in late 2008, the executive directors had voluntarily agreed
to effect a temporary reduction of their basic remuneration
until the business of the Group recovers. During the year, all
the executive directors had agreed to a temporary reduction
of their basic remuneration of approximately 10% (2017:
10%). The basic remuneration of the executive directors
would be resumed to the original levels as contained in their
service agreements when the executive directors consider
appropriate.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to

the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

10. A E5BESMEZREE 10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

FA hEEEEMEZEBERELS
“T—+tF:AREF HMCHEI
REAFEERAMIFEQ

BB

FR - AEEREFHEBRBNEH - T
RASBERBELRNEBBZERB G
A A AR F R E L EER T A
MR FEEEBHERR #E_F—t
FZA=T—"BLEFER RREEZRE
FHERTB R FIR16.5% B X HEE B
o Boobih R 2 5 FI B R AR A R E
EBRERRBEERE ZRITHRE

The five highest paid employees during the year included five
(2017: five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 9 to the financial statements.

.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or has
available tax losses brought forward from prior years to offset the
assessable profits generated during the year. For the year ended
31 March 2017, Hong Kong profits tax had been provided at the
rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during that year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/

=) jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
(BB TFT) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
BIE] - Current:
REFEZH Charge for the year
a5 Hong Kong - 1
E b [= Elsewhere 18,560 25,200
B EE IR (%428 H#)  Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years 718 (63)
RIE(fa229) Deferred (note 29) 7,034 2,268
AFERIBS N Tax charge for the year 26,312 27,406
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

11. R (&) 11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

BB AN ABARETRRREMRBA
RIFEBRR G AR ZATRRTE
(FREMI2%E25%) 2 FRAS H » BIRE
BMEHE 2 RIBESE 2 @AET

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates, ranging from 12% to 25%, for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

(BB FT) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
B A5 Al A Profit before tax 129,143 78,759
ATEMRAE 2 FE Tax at the statutory tax rates 30,008 30,890
(EGIE=NES: chal: Y - Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

S TR, BT R specific provinces and local authorities (6,723) (11,708)
BN B FE(D @ T & B Profits and losses attributable to associates (842) (777)
PRI 2 2 H Expenses not deductible for tax 20,061 22,191

HBAEMTLIE 2 WA Income not subject to tax (16,284) (15,288)
AERZ RNEEFIAEER Tax losses for the year not recognized 2,277 4,842
FRRERZBEFE Unrecognized tax losses from

HIEEE prior years utilized (3,152) (3,893)
BEFERNERIE Adjustments in respect of current

2 tax of prior years 718 (63)
REE 2 B RF DM E Effect of withholding tax on distributable

EE?D#%%RZ%% profits of the subsidiaries of the Group 249 1,212
BALEBBERNEAEZ Tax charge at the Group’s effective

YA 32 tax rates 26,312 27,406
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

31 March 2018

12.[R 8 12.DIVIDENDS
BT oT) (HK$’000) 2018 2017
FABNERE Dividends paid during the year:
BE-_Z—tF=/F=+—8It Final in respect of the financial year
WBEE 2R~ ended 31 March 2017 — HK$0.026
TR E @B 0.026 7T (year ended 31 March 2016: HK$0.006)
(BEz—ZE—F~"F=A=+—HIt per ordinary share
FE : B%0.0067T) 16,394 3,783
HE—_ZT—+tF=-A=+—81 Special final in respect of the financial year
BABUF E 2 $5 B R EA — ended 31 March 2017 - HK$0.032
TR BARE0.0327T (year ended 31 March 2016: HK$0.032)
(BHE—Z—X"F=A=+—81t per ordinary share
FE - #%0.03270) 20,177 20,177
fR Ol — SRR AR 0.037T Interim — HK$0.03 (2017: HK$0.014)
(ZZF—t4F : B%0.01471) per ordinary share 18,916 8,827
55,487 32,787
EERAHMIFRIRBRE Proposed final and special final dividends:
RE— S EBREE0.057T Final — HK$0.05 (2017: HK$0.026)
—E—+tF : B%0.0267T) per ordinary share 31,527 16,394
FRIR —\(ZZ—t5F: Special final - Nil (2017: HK$0.032
A% E B E0.0327T) per ordinary share) - 20,177
31,527 36,571

REFEFH 2 RABRBALEARBRRE
B BIT 2R EAF RN /ER T AIE
B - R EW WAL AR RIREN R

g

!

i

o

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

dividend payable.
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The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the final
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—E-N\F=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2018

13. AR ERFEAELEREF 13.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

FREARBNDDEEFALRABEZRE The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
BARBGEARERERFEEE 101,877,000 Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
—Z—+ 4 : ##51,485,0007T) REA the year of HK$101,877,000 (2017: HK$51,485,000) and on
BT &M 2 bl F 19 £0630,531,600 the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 630,531,600
f%(—Z—+4 : 630,531,6000%) 5+ & Fir (2017: 630,531,600) in issue during the year.
g
AR AEEREZ T — \FR_E—+ No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
F=/F=4+— Hiiwlﬂﬂﬁéfﬂfﬂﬁﬁ presented for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 as the
EEIEAR N EERNEITRE7 Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
R ERERBFIEITHE - these years.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

31 March 2018

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2018

KAEHELE BE
kEF R e FA
HERT REMRE
Freehold Plant,
land and machinery,
buildings, EEIR furniture
and leasehold  Construction and other @
(EEFT) (HK$'000) buildings in progress equipment Total
RZE—+F=ZA=1—H At 31 March 2017
XA Cost 751,078 11,748 941,139 1,703,965
SEMELRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (295,729) - (767.980)  (1,063,709)
EmFE Net carrying amount 455,349 11,748 173,159 640,256
RZZE—tFMA-A - At 1 April 2017, net of accumulated
ENREANERAE depreciation and impairment 455,349 11,748 173,159 640,256
= Additions 138 4,969 54,405 59,512
HE Disposals - - (280) (280)
s Write-offs - (71) (2,177) (2,248)
R Transfers - (4,652) 4,652 -
AEEMERE Depreciation provided during the year (20,965) - (32,986) (53,951)
[ 5 A% Exchange realignment 39,192 1,620 19,046 59,858
RZZE-\F=ZA=1+-H" At 31 March 2018, net of accumulated
2k 2TEREA depreciation and impairment 473,714 13,614 215,819 703,147
RZZ-\F=A=+—H At 31 March 2018
KA Cost 820,185 13,614 1,071,216 1,905,015
SEMERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (346,471) - (855,397)  (1,201,868)
FEFE Net carrying amount 473714 13,614 215,819 703,147

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018 149



IR M @) Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—E-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018
14. 9%  MERZEE) 14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
—E—+F=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2017
KAERLH BE
kEF R B Bl
HEgF REMRE
Freehold Plant,
land and machinery,
buildings, EEIR furniture
and leasehold  Construction and other @t
(BEFr) (HK$'000) buildings in progress equipment Total
RZE—R"FZA=+—H At 31 March 2016
XA Cost 781,358 20,828 1,004,373 1,806,559
ZEMERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (287,137) - (802,807)  (1,089,944)
FEFE Net carrying amount 494,221 20,828 201,566 716,615
RZE—"ENA—-RB At 1 April 2016, net of accumulated
BNk ZNERAE depreciation and impairment 494,221 20,828 201,566 716,615
WNE Additions 1,403 2,774 6,058 10,235
HeE Disposals - - (1,672) (1,672)
B Write-offs - (124) (127) (251)
B Transfers 161 (10,140) 9,979 -
AEEMERE Depreciation provided during the year (22,038) - (30,670) (52,708)
fE R Exchange realignment (18,398) (1,590) (11,975) (31,963)

RZE—+F=ZA=+—-H" At 31 March 2017, net of accumulated
DIN% 2 E A depreciation and impairment 455,349 11,748 173,159 640,256

RZE—tF=A=T—-H At 31 March 2017

B AR Cost 751,078 11,748 941,139 1,703,965
2HERGE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (295,729) - (767,980) (1,063,709)

EEYE Net carrying amount 455,349 11,748 173,159 640,256
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

15. 8 EYE 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BT oT) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
REYIHEREE Carrying amount at beginning of year 281,600 292,224
= Additions 224 236
R KRERZ Fair value changes recognized in the

NEEZE(HiE7) income statement (note 7) 8,512 7,086
PE 5 A= Exchange realignment 30,400 (17,946)
R=ZA=+—HMEAE Carrying amount at 31 March 320,736 281,600

AEEREMERBERMEZINE - 5
BRERIIRNPEAEN TEYE -
AEBREMERBEELREXERGE
B R BEIERITARRBMAEM/E B
TE-N\F=ZRA=1+—HZEHEER
78 #320,736,0007C (ZFE—+F : B
281,600,0007T) - "EBEEEEGFE
RERESNEAER B BEAREEYE 25
MiEE - EZREREMSHNE - B
B BUIENREGARFEEXRE - K
ARAEEEEF RN FEMHREET
HERRAERRMAESRE[ERNME

TTadam °

REMETIBRBEEEHNEETFE =T
ERAME 2 E—PFBERNYBHRERN T
35(a) °

SEREMEZE ¥

o

g

FIEEM 5200

m Bt

\

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

The investment properties of the Group were determined as
industrial properties in Mainland China, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The investment
properties of the Group were revalued on 31 March 2018
based on valuations performed by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield
Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers,
at HK$320,736,000 (2017: HK$281,600,000). Each year,
the Group’s management decides to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s management has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 35(a) to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 200.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

15. REWHE(E) 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

DNFEER

Fair value hierarchy

TRINRAEEREMEZ R FEAHERE

o hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

R-E-NE=A=+-H
NATESERA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2018 using

RERTS EATEE EATTEE

ZHE BAHE BARE

(%) (%5=FE) (%=F)

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs gt
(B¥TFr) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

NTHEEZEEHNTEHE Recurring fair value measurement for:
TENE Industrial properties - - 320,736 320,736
RZZ-t£=A=t+-H
WATEERA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2017 using

RERTS EATHE EAFTEE

ZHE BAHE BAYE

(5-18) (=) (E=8)

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs act
(BEFT) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

MUTER 7 &FHEATEHE . Recurring fair value measurement for:

TEME Industrial properties - - 281,600 281,600

FAF-EBEE B RTELAAF
Eff2EE  NENLE=EE AxE
T ).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).
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—ET-NF=HA=+—H 31 March 2018
15. REME (&) 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AFREEHKE) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
IR AKEMEREMBGEEREE Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
ARG 2 HE - inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
ERTAHE
BB
fh{ER % Significant mEEYE
Valuation unobservable weighted average
techniques inputs 2018 2017
IEME wEFE FHEE(EAH) #B%2,309,0007T 72 084,0007T
Industrial properties Investment method Term rent HK$2,309,000 HK$2,084,000

(per month)

FH = 7 7
Term yield (%)

EEEe(TA) 7AB#2.109,000T 7E#51,847,0007T
Reversionary rent HK$2,109,000 HK$1,847,000
(per month)

EHEKEE 7 7

Reversionary yield

(%)
AREBTITEWMEAFENFERKRER The fair value of the Group’s industrial properties is determined
E o BRAERONBESWA - Wit RE using the investment method, by capitalizing the rental income
WA EREZBEELEERNE - A FEFEHR derived from the existing tenancy with due allowance for the
FHHe NERES 2 EHEBEERAKE reversionary potential of the property. The fair value measurement
FHINFE R EGKREER2AHEERE - is positively correlated to the term rent and reversionary rent and

negatively correlated to term yield and reversionary yield.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2018

16.PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

(BEMFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
REJHIREE Carrying amount at beginning of year 37,365 40,473
NS g Amortized during the year (1,383) (1,395)
PEE 5, 3 B Exchange realignment 2,827 (1,713)
R=ZA=+—HMEEE Carrying amount at 31 March 38,809 37,365
RENEH D BIEER S Current portion included in deposits,

TR A & E At FE U AR A prepayments and other receivables

(K1at21) (note 21) (1,479) (1,354)
JEMBNER Non-current portion 37,330 36,011

17. 58 17.GOODWILL

(B¥For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
S Goodwill 94,923 94,923
RZZE—RFNOA—H Cost and carrying amount at

—E—t+F=ZA=+—H 1 April 2016,

—F-—tFOA—ABK 31 March 2017,

—E-\F=A=+—H 1 April 2017 and

RN R BREE 31 March 2018 94,923
BEREAR Impairment testing of goodwill

HEBAHELEZHEDETHFEARK
A (TR B ) B 8 A R 1T R E R
& o ZREWB AT 2 KOS BIRERE
REEZEET  AEMANRERE
BRAAAFEMBEE RER - thEREE
AENEIZRREEAHEREIRFTR
o PWHRBENGERRT EFUALBE
FEMERR - RERNEHY - ReRERE
RIPTANFTREERIS(ZF—HF
10%) (FAT) - URBRABRIM B 2 B 2 fF
ERR - AFEMRZASRIZIERE3I%
HH -
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Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the Group’s subsidiaries in Shunde, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), for impairment testing. The recoverable
amount of the subsidiaries has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculation include the expected growth
rate and discount rate. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting current and prior years performance and development
expectations. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 11% (2017: 10%) which is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of
3%.
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—E-N\F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2018
18. NEtE NTI2RE 18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(B For) (HK$°000) 2018 2017
FEHEEFE Share of net assets 32,627 25,922
ERBE AR ZRRREAE HERE - & The balances due to the associates are trade related, unsecured,
B 2B R—BR=+RAEZNM - 5t interest-free and normally settled on a term of 30 days.
I RZE—N\F=ZA=+—8 - ErH# Accordingly, as at 31 March 2018, the amounts due to associates
ENRIERE 12,282,000t (ZF —+ of HK$12,282,000 (2017: HK$6,871,000) are included in the
F : B¥6,871,0000) ERRATENE 5 trade and bills payables, as disclosed in note 25 to the financial
ERIRAA - RS RAR W 2587 - statements.
FrEAERE 2L QA RHARP MR All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in
RAPBERELE 2 BEEA ° the PRC and operating in Mainland China.
BN R 2 FFAERINT ¢ Particulars of the associates are as follows:
A E A
EREIL

Percentage of

BUWEMELR  ownership interest

3 Paid-up attributable FEEK
Name registered capital to the Group Principal activities
FILT EHESERER AR 1,520,000 T 25 BUENIHEIREEEEMD
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Co., Ltd. US$1,520,000 Manufacture and sale

of iron casting products

BT IRIEE E M EE R R AR 800,000% 7T 25 E RS
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery US$800,000 Dormant

Company, Limited @
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—E-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018
18. A AT 2RE (&) 18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Hat Notes:

(1) B RRZEEMBEHREIEBBEBLKE (1) The statutory financial statements of the above companies are not
AR E IS FTSZ K S TRl B FT B B A8 4% audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Hhpk B A RIE - Ernst & Young global network.

(2) EMARIL=RAR=+—HBAHREEH " (2) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to
LFAEEBRARIZHRERE - conform with their holding company’s reporting date.

(3) ‘EXRE|BTBEH-BR - (3) The English company name is translated for identification purposes

only.

REBAHE_ZT—+FE=A=+—H81t The Group received dividend income of HK$10,929,000 from an

FERKY—BZE RN WE S WA B associate during the year ended 31 March 2017.

10,929,0007T °

TRINRAEE @R IEE KA QA The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
RIS ERNABEE - of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:
(E#For) (HK$°000) 2018 2017
ey NS =R Share of the associates’ profit for the year 3,366 3,107
HEEE AR EMEE Share of the associates’ other comprehensive
Wz, (i) income/(expenses) 3,339 (2,830)
ayil/NE]| Share of the associates’ total comprehensive
wEEY R income 6,705 277
REBFRBZ N A Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
WEREERE investments in the associates 32,627 25,922
19.%7% 19.INVENTORIES
(BEMFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
BEx Raw materials 217,418 178,042
fE&m Work in progress 199,680 148,231
2k Finished goods 385,397 131,668
802,495 457,941
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

20 EHESZ REBRN 20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(B For) (HK$°000) 2018 2017
FEUE SR Trade receivables 682,881 596,767
B Impairment (87,801) (89,390)
eI E S ERFFRE (7L (a) Trade receivables, net (note (a)) 595,080 507,377
U =R BRI (7 (b)) Bills receivable (note (b)) 271,689 239,442
BUKE 5 M EIERERT Total trade and bills receivables 866,769 746,819
oD RIEREEE Portion classified as non-current portion (22,588) (10,346)
BN ER Current portion 844,181 736,473

BEPZBESHEF—RA/RERSH  RITER
BELERKE - AEEREENEFP 2
XENREBRTEPERER  FEH—
REB=TRE—A/N\TX - AEERIEK
REEIEBE B IRR R EURR - BRE

ERgRERE -

ER LANBHEARENEKE SRR
BRFRAAREDAEPHAK  #RBE
AROEREERR - NEBEY B ZFE
BB AETAEARELNRERZYm -
B EUE 5 R B 185,815,000 (= F
—+t 4 : #¥49,264,0007T) LA FHE FI
K61%(ZE—LF  62%);FEREE
H—RRt+_EAZ_+tHEEAI - Fek
Z B 5 K RIBERRA IS, o

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank
bills or on credit. The Group grants credit to customers based on
their respective business strength and creditability, with credit
periods of 30 days to 180 days in general. The Group adopts strict
control policies over credit terms and receivables that serve to
minimize credit risk.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade and bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Except for the trade receivables of
HK$85,815,000 (2017: HK$49,264,000) which are interest-
bearing at an average interest rate of 6.1% (2017: 6.2%) per
annum and with credit periods of 12 months to 24 months in
general, the remaining trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
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B IR R 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—E-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018
20 ENEB S REBR(EZ) 20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
FEWE S RERETRERESENT The movements in impairment allowance for trade receivables are
as follows:
CEMTFoTr) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
REH] At beginning of year 89,390 102,976
PR ERTANREEE Write-back of impairment losses credited to
BEFRE(NE7) the income statement, net (note 7) (1,583) (6,865)
EX RN o] Amounts written off as uncollectible (6,443) (2,620)
FE o 2 =& Exchange realignment 6,437 (4,101)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 87,801 89,390
ELiEWESERBEREGER B2IE Included in the above impairment allowance for trade receivables
HEEREBBEERE SR XBES is an allowance for individually impaired trade receivables
B 83844000 L (=T — + & : H K of HK$83,844,000 (2017: HK$81,785,000) with a gross
81,785,0007t) * ERBERI 2 REE carrying amount before provision of HK$87,534,000 (2017:
A HEEST7 534,000 T ( —ZE —+4F : B HK$86,592,000). The individually impaired trade receivables
86,592,0007T) ° T VE{E BIF B & & 2 fE relate to customers that were in default or delinquency in interest
WESETFRFBSAS 2 /K LFEE or principal payments and only a portion of the receivables is
RAaE o ERERZ B - expected to be recovered.
(a) RIREBIRZEWE SIRFIZESE (a) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
ARG B ETE 2 REE DT - the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

provision, is as follows:

(BE¥For) (HK$’000) 2018 2017

RN Within 90 days 258,879 227,792
A+—=2—FN\+X 91 to 180 days 118,578 112,937
—BNt+t—ZE=ZAA~ATREX 181 to 365 days 155,670 119,921

HBiE—F Over 1 year 61,953 46,727

595,080 507,377
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BTSRRI 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—Z-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018
20 EEZ REBRN(Z 20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) (&) (a) (continued)
REEEIR 2 AR A% A BER EU The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
BRI (R H A E Y ERD considered to be impaired as at the end of the reporting
M period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:
(E#For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
REER (I Re B gORE) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 353,660 276,521
wHL R LR Less than 90 days past due 123,292 128,905
mEALt+—Z2—B/N\t+X 91 to 180 days past due 50,078 47,101
wWEEB—BAN\TX Over 180 days past due 64,360 50,043
591,390 502,570
A oK 80 HA sl (B 2 B W I A N s Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
el Yk -y S customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
2@ HB I SR E 2 FEW R IE B & Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
ATHASEB RIS EHENE T to a number of independent customers that have a good
BE ERNBEFKE  KAREER track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
B BANMEEEERTESAEE - B the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
REERDWR B 2EULE - RE impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
BB AR ERERE - balances as there has not been a significant change in credit

quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

(b) MIFEBRZ EREERZZEH A (b) The maturity dates of the bills receivable as at the end of the
DT reporting period are analyzed as follows:

(E¥For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017

NtTERA Within 90 days 121,423 124,416

ht+—&2—8\N+X 91 to 180 days 106,575 77,771

—EBNT—ZE=ZBEATEKX 181 to 365 days 43,691 37,255

271,689 239,442
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B IR R 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—E-N\F=ZA=t+—H 31 March 2018
21.75] & - A REREMEWIRM 21.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(BE¥For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
HESSEINESE] Deposits and prepayments 75,539 20,501
H b AR FR Other receivables 35,098 33,079
B ORE Less: Impairment (16,448) (17,077)
TERT T EER Prepaid land lease payments,
mENVER D (HFE16) current portion (note 16) 1,479 1,354
FEUFI IR Tax recoverable 1,194 748
96,862 38,605
HEMEWRFRERELHNT : The movements in impairment allowance for deposits and

prepayments and other receivables are as follows:

(B¥For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
A At beginning of year 17,077 17,664
EREFRNBRERE Impairment losses charged/(write-back of

B8,/ (GE AR R ER 8 &) impairment losses credited) to the income

R statement, net (note 7) (1,934) 514
T e E RS RE Amounts written off as uncollectible (529) -
PE 5 3 B Exchange realignment 1,834 (1,101)
W=B=+—8H At 31 March 16,448 17,077
L EMEREFTREREF SR Included in the above impairment allowance for other receivables
821 8 B R B E e AR SO is an allowance for individually impaired other receivables
16,448,000 L ( —Z & — £ F : B of HK$16,448,000 (2017: HK$17,077,000) with a gross
17,077,0007t) * ERABER 2 FEE carrying amount before provision of HK$16,448,000 (2017:
R7EHE16,448,000 (=T —H4F : B HK$17,077,000).

17,077,0007T) ©

B EL fth i U BR 510 5 16,448,000T (= F Except for other receivables of HK$16,448,000 (2017:
—-tF : E¥17,077,00070) 5+ ZEE HK$17,077,000), none of these assets is either past due or
EREAIRE  SRTHNEemEEY impaired. The financial assets included in these balances relate to
T AR 4 agn BR AN R EE 8% 2 FEUBR K - receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
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BTSRRI 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—E-N\F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2018
22 R mE HE IR 22.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
REEHEET EIBRTER - ZSHE The Group leases certain of its injection moulding machines to its
DEEABREHEREFIGEEHR AN %’— customers. These leases are classified as finance leases and have
—lARE_F(ZE—+tHF: LARZE= remaining lease terms ranging from 1 month to 2 years (2017:
F) - EERBEHEHE AR - 51 9 months to 3 years). The customers shall purchase the leased
ENAREEBECHE T8 # - injection moulding machines at the end of lease terms of the

finance leases.

(B For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
R R EHE IR Finance lease receivables 37,951 46,870
NERED Impairment (1,717) (602)
FEW AR ERICFE Finance lease receivables, net 36,234 46,268
B BEIERDEE Portion classified as non-current portion (2,591) (9,575)
RENEE D Current portion 33,643 36,693

RZE-—N\F=A=1+—H0  REMEHR At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease receivables
ENRRE DB ERIBRERFEEHE under finance leases and their present values were as follows:
BT

EYEREERENRE
EVEWREHRE Present value of
Minimum lease receivables minimum lease receivables

(EEFrT) (HK$'000) 2018 2017 2018 2017
JEYRFIE - Amounts receivable:

—FR Within one year 34,571 38,516 33,643 36,693

B-F In the second year 2,639 10,092 2,591 9,575
O ENEEEENIREE Total minimum finance lease receivables 37,210 48608 36,234 46,268
REDE YA Unearned finance income (976) (2,340)
YR AR ERB S AL Total net finance lease receivables 36,234 46,268
NEETHEENLY Portion classified as current assets (33,643) (36,693)
ERBHD Non-current portion 2,591 9,575
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22. R MEEERNRE)

Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

22.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

HEZZ - \F=—A=-+—RHIEFERL No contingent income was recognized during the year ended 31
e AW ABIER(ZZT—+F ) o March 2018 (2017: Nil).
RN R E R ERFRERBEEDNOT - The movements in impairment allowance for finance lease
receivables are as follows:

CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
RE) At beginning of year 602 -
R ERINGRERESE Impairment losses charged to the income

FR(HE7) statement, net (note 7) 1,050 602
bE 5, R Exchange realignment 65 -
R=A=+—H At 31 March 1,717 602
AL R EHSRFIAERETRE Included in the above impairment allowance for finance lease
8 B2 1E & BB E FE WE 5 EREEE receivables is an allowance for individually impaired receivables of
¥ 1,717,000t (=2 &2 — £ F : BK HK$1,717,000 (2017: HK$602,000) with a gross carrying amount

602,0007T) *r HRBEIZEEER
BEE2372000 L (ZE—+HF « B
1,515,0007T) » EVEERIREE B 2 mE
AERFTFRFESAE 2R RTEHR
EM&ZEﬁBn EWEER 2B ©

RBERRZERAHRERENRERE
R NAMB A EZ RO

before provision of HK$2,372,000 (2017: HK$1,515,000). The
individually impaired finance lease receivables relate to customers
that were in default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.

The ageing analysis of the finance lease receivables that are not
considered to be impaired as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the payment due date, is as follows:

CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
REIER (W R 38 BR sk Rl (B ) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 21,708 37,169
BELR TR Less than 90 days past due 4,825 4,587
BRANT—ZE—ANTX 91 to 180 days past due 2,242 2,372
mARA—E/\TX Over 180 days past due 6,804 1,227

35,579 45,355
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

22. FEWmEHRER(Z) 22.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

A RIS 2 BRSO B0
BITREE 2 EF -

EE A ERE 2 BUGKIEAIS RET
HEAKEERHRHLHENBLES - £
RiBELS  ARREERR ANEE
BRUVESAEE  ARFERDEER
A E2ERE - RBAAE BARIELRE
B -

23 B FRTER

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group or supported by guarantees from third parties.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

23.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

(B#EFT) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
EIRIRITIF R IEREE S Pledged bank deposits, non-current portion 1,242 1,693
EIRRITIER - mENE D Pledged bank deposits, current portion 45,755 55,525

46,997 57,218

EEERETWEB QR A 2R
3 EfFE#20,220,000t(—E—+
F o #%29,735,0007T) FAVEERKFHE
AERTHTEFPIEBERAEEERD
RITEF - B¥26,777,0000( =T —+
& B1524,348,0007T) FAEERE H 4
THEMMBRITERLES  ZFEZELA
EREZREBERA - RZT—tF=
A=+—8  #%3,135000T K R1T1F
REEARAERERINIEEEY 2 EE
B o

HIRRITERFRR L BT R DL
BIEBERIT

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

Balances included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries,
including HK$20,220,000 (2017: HK$29,735,000) for securing
bank loans granted by banks in Mainland China to customers
to purchase the Group’s products, HK$26,777,000 (2017:
HK$24,348,000) for securing the issuance of bank acceptance
notes, included in the trade and bills payables, to suppliers. As
at 31 March 2017, bank deposits of HK$3,135,000 were pledged
as a guarantee for payments of construction costs of industrial
buildings.

The pledged bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018 163
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—E-N\F=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2018
2 MENBITETE 24.CASH AND BANK BALANCES
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
Re RIRTTHETTF Cash and bank balances 541,313 730,988
AT FR B BB B R B B Bank deposits with original maturity of
TR=MMAZEEBFH less than three months when acquired 70,251 38,734
611,564 769,722
AT SR BE B IR AR B Bank deposits with original maturity of more
A= {EA 2 EEFH than three months when acquired - 82,803
IR © RIRITET Total cash and bank balances 611,564 852,525
Biat RITFEFARITE B FROE R R Note: The cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
FE - RTAEERREMNFR » MEL bank deposit rates. The time deposits are made for varying periods
HEtRE=BA(ZE—+tF : EREX of between 7 days and 3 months (2017: 7 days and 6 months)
BA)TEMNTEBRER » WATFHTFRE depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
KR A RITREFREEXZETE earn interest at the respective time deposit rates or rates correlated
DL 2 R RERIF S - RITEFT to a certain percentage of local interbank deposit rate. The bank
PN S BB 40408 2 B 5B IRTT © balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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BTSRRI 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—E-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018

25. BENEZREBERX 25.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
RBEHRZENE S REBRERIRERE The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
REGTE 2R T T of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
BT oT) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
NTERA Within 90 days 326,244 221,133
nt+—=z=—daN+xk 91 to 180 days 65,552 61,638
—BN\t+—E=ZBATHEK 181 to 365 days 67,759 55,812
Hilm—F Over 1 year 16,302 18,384

475,857 356,967

FENE S REEERI AR E R —K= The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
EREANGE - BENESZREEBETS normally settled on terms of 3 to 6 months. Included in the trade
B FE FE S B 2 A B R IE B 5 12,282,000 and bills payables are trade payables of HK$12,282,000 (2017:
T(ZZE—+4F : 16871,0007T) @ K HK$6,871,000) due to associates which are repayable within 30
NFGERBE=ZTRAZ - days.
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—E-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018
26. Hit B IR R ERT B & 26.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
BUERET & Deposits received 71,590 59,846
ErtaEEMERE Accruals and other liabilities 154,999 134,820
HihENBER M EST R E ST Total other payables and accruals 226,589 194,666
BoDEAERBEE Portion classified as non-current portion (2,258) (3,041)
mENE S Current portion 224,331 191,625
AAEMENERMNEFEENSREE The financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
AR F) S, o are non-interest-bearing.
27. 5t RBITER 27.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
ERAE
Effective
interest rate pb:
(BETF) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2018 2017
RITEREES Bank loans repayable 1.0 2018
—ER . EBEA within one year, unsecured (2017:1.3)  (2017:2017) 24,770 73,422
AREBE 7 EEBETERNZESHF KT The Group’s unsecured bank loans are at floating rates.
B o
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28. EREEHNEME

REBESEZHBARRYERTE 7
HR_ZTZTRFEA—BL TRIKSEN
ERAIDESE KB ARREAZ BKS
DEE - RIBERE - EEAEESFIRE
ZEESZHRNER - BRI EE IR
BFEHET  RZ2H45% - HELSEGS
PR IBRIKFIREF IR BT AT TRUARKE NS
BRAMFHAFE -

Eff8IZRkAKEET ARZERKRERGSH#
o RERRERETHZRESEE  WNUER
BB A BEBAERETE
AZEREE - ZEERMEARE - &
AEENEESEBOF - REQRARETE
ZAT Bl IRE KA o

FEBERRES - RIS ERANES
EHER - RATHERREERBROHY
2,

B 82 5 BIA R R R R R AT R AN
HiAE - oA BRE SRR A AN
4T S A R TR PR B IR A A
—E—\FZASt+—BEF - HUER
B R B R -

RBEPRZEBRERRAOT ¢

Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate the Old Scheme,
covering substantially all of its employees who were recruited
by the Taiwanese subsidiaries before the implementation of
the Labour Act on 1 July 2005. Under the Old Scheme, the
employees are entitled to retirement benefits annually based
on an accumulated base point, which is determined by their
years of service, with a maximum of 45 points multiplied by the
average monthly salary for the final six months of employment on
attainment of a retirement age ranging from 55 to 65.

The Old Scheme requires the Group to make monthly
contributions to the retirement fund. The fund is administered by
the Committee and is deposited under the Committee’s name with
a government approved financial institution, which acts as the
trustee. The assets held by the trustee are separated from those of
the Group. The Committee is responsible for the determination of
the investment strategy of the scheme.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in
the life expectancy for pensioners, equity market risk and credit
risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out
on 31 March 2018 by Greatfine Wealth Management Consulting
Inc., a qualified actuary recognized by the Actuarial Institute in
Taiwan, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

2018 2017
IR = Discount rate 1% 1%
18 BR & 18 R R Expected rate of salary increases 1% 1%

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

28. EEHEANEFE (&) 28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
FEMEBETEEENMERBD The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan

25865000 (=T —tF : B
14,888,000 ) - B EEEENRKE
BEAASTEKMHE TAHIRMNREND
68% (T —+LF :42%) - MR BB
12,251,000 7T I T8 HA 7 5 84 AR 7% HA 16 F
JHER

TERAREHRMEANEABRRNTE
GRS -

assets was HK$25,865,000 (2017: HK$14,888,000) and that
the actuarial value of these assets represented 68% (2017: 42%)
of the benefits that had accrued to qualifying employees. The
deficiency of HK$12,251,000 is expected to be cleared over the
remaining service period of 16 years.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at
the end of the reporting period is shown below:

2018

EHEREH EHEBEH

BERE BEFE

Bm/ B/

(H) (H)

Increase/ Increase/

= (decrease) ERHD (decrease)

Increase of defined Decrease of defined

in rate benefit in rate benefit

(BETFT) (HK$'000) % obligations % obligations
FrR® Discount rate 05 (1,141) (0.5) 1,498
ARG EER Future salary increase 0.5 1,483 (0.5) (1,145)

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

28.EHEBANEREE) 28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

2017

EEEA EEER

EEFE BEEFE

#m/ B/

(H2) (H2)

Increase/ Increase/

g M (decrease) fERD (decrease)

Increase of defined Decrease of defined

in rate benefit in rate benefit

(BE¥FIT) (HK$000) % obligations % obligations
BiIpERA Discount rate 05 (1,230) (0.5) 1,354
ARG ER Future salary increase 0.5 1,348 (0.5) (1,237)

REEE S - TRE AR ERRERS
BREHAABEDE Y EERNEA
B M IRE - BB DRREAR
22D RABAELEBRERTENE
o BRI ST T B TR R R
F2EREH  BARRTAT IR
Hi B RED -

EHAkRRTRRNE W BB A RS
T -

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is
based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognized in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the scheme are as follows:

CBE¥For) (HK$°000) 2018 2017
B AR TS AR AR Current service cost 379 366
SN Interest cost 220 237
FAE A B A Net benefit expenses 599 603

R EEARAR 2018 F3H
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—ET-NF=HA=+—H 31 March 2018
28. EFEEAEEE) 28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
TrHEENEEMTEEEN AT E & The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair
N value of plan assets are as follows:
2018
REERNBHERSAA HARMAERENEREE/ (5R)
Pension cost charged to the Remeasurement gainsf(losses) in
income statement other comprehensive income
Angt i
b 41 BRat

itA Bt ik AR

hE% BE2D  RERE 2EkE

Nt Actuarial ~ Actuarial Nt

HEER  Subtotal changes changes Subtotal

RE] 8 included arising from ~ arising from inclded  EXER

A BERA Net inthe  BfEA  changesin changesin  BBER inother Contribution ~ E}BE R
beginning ~ Service  interest income ~ Benefit  demographic financial ~ Experience  comprehensive by  Exchingg =t-A
(B4F1) (HK$000) of year cost  expense statement paid  assumptions  assumptions adjustments income ~~ employer realignment At 31 Mar
TRERER Defined beneft obligations 35,657 379 383 762 (470) (53) 504 (77) 374 - 179 33116
FHEENTE  Farvaleofplanessets  (14,889) - (163) (163) i - - (577) (677) (9,618) (1030 (25,865
Bk Beneft liabilly 20,769 379 20 599 - (53) S04 (634) (203) (9,618) o 1251
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—Z-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018
28. EEBANEFE(E) 28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
2017
HEBRNBHRHAA FARMAERENEREET/ (58)
Pension cost charged to the Remeasurement gains/(losses) in
income statement other comprehensive income
Angt i
BREL B3R
A Bt ik AR
g% B899 REED EE
) Actuarial ~ Actuarial It
HEER  Sublotal Changes changes Subtotal
RE] FE  included arising from ~ arising from inclded  EXER
A RERA Net inthe  BfEA  changesin changesin  BHER inother Contribution ~ E}HE zR
beginning ~~ Service  interest income  Benefit  demographic financial ~ Experience  comprehensive by  Exchingge =t-A
(B¥Tr) (HK$ 000) of year cost  expense  statement paid  assumptions  assumptions  adjustments income ~employer realignment At 31 Mar
i Defined benefit obligations 33,679 366 405 m (263) 180 31 1,300 1,791 - 200 3H6H
SYEEATE  Farvaleofpanassets  (13939) - (168) (168§ 263 - - 16 16 (2577) (854)  (14,8%9)
EflaE Benefit liabilty 19,741 366 3 603 - 180 3 1316 1807 (2577) 11% 20,76
AREBHEEEBRBZ ATEFTESEN The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets of
N the Group are as follows:
2018 2017
BE MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 18% 18%
AT A Equity instruments 67% 64%
EFEITA Debt instruments 15% 18%
100% 100%
NEBEFEEN T EE B EE RE EEEE T The Group expects to make a contribution of HK$2,417,000 (2017:
SHEMWER B2 417,000 ( ZE—+ HK$2,604,000) to the defined benefit scheme during the next
F B2 604,0007T) ° financial year.
REPEHKR - TRREMNE T ZEHSER The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end
MATE(ZE—+F : +£4)- of the reporting period is 7 years (2017: 7 years).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)

31 March 2018

29.DEFERRED TAX

year are as follows:

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

EELEHRESE Deferred tax liabilities
BEREA
HRAEN
TERBE
Provisions and
depreciation
allowance in
MEER excess of M@
Revaluation of related Withholding e
(EEFT) (HK$'000) properties  depreciation tax Total
RZE—~ENA—H At 1 April 2016 25,879 3,581 (191) 29,269
AEERARERIGZ Deferred tax charged to the income statement
ERBEFR(ME11) during the year, net (note 11) 1,830 58 1,163 3,051
WELRBEFE Withholding tax on repatriation of
M earnings from subsidiaries - - (854) (854)
ERIEEA Exchange realignment (1,591) (88) (118) (1,797)
RZE—t&=A=F+—HK  At3l March 2017 and
—E—t&NA—H 1 April 2017 26,118 3,551 - 29,669
AEERNRERIGRZ Deferred tax charged to the income statement
EIERESFE(W#11) during the year, net (note 11) 2,296 1,634 2,452 6,382
0 5 2% Exchange realignment 2,817 152 233 3,202
RZE-N\F=ZA=+-H2 Net deferred tax liabilities recognized in the
RREAUBRAE consolidated statement of financial position
EEREAETE at 31 March 2018 31,231 5,337 2,685 39,253

172 EHEBEBRAF 2018 F5H
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

29.EERIE (&) 29.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

BEERIEEE Deferred tax assets
HEER nas EEWR
B Tax  Withholding Deferred @t
(BEF) (HK$'000) Provisions losses tax revenue Total
RZE- FMA—H At 1 April 2016 35,241 1,080 (139) - 36,182
KEBRUZEREA/(3K)  Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the

ZEERB income statement during the year,

FRME1) net (note 11) 1,845 (1,013) (49) - 783
fE 5 A Exchange realignment (1,942) (67) 9) - (2,018)
RZZ—+F=A=+—HK At31March 2017 and

“Z—+FNA—H 1 April 2017 35,144 - (197) - 34,947
REERWERE A/ (31B)  Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the

ZIEERIA income statement during the year,

(1) net (note 11) (1,835) 1,172 (225) 236 (652)
WERRBEEFEZ Withholding tax on repatriation of

M earnings from subsidiaries - - 249 - 249
B 5 3= Exchange realignment 3,635 - 9) - 3,626
RZE-NEF=ZA=1+—H2 Netdeferred tax assets recognized in

BRRGATBRAE the consolidated statement of financial

ELERBEAETE position at 31 March 2018 36,944 1,172 (182) 236 38,170

RAEEZHEBERERNRELS - P H
KK & &5 5l R 286,776,000 7T
(ZZ—+%F : #%289,912,0007T) *
BH#61,394000 L (=T —+F : B
68,269,0007T ) & & ¥ 20,721,0007T ( =
T— 4 : B¥9,179,0007T) - A fHHiK
HEREREEZ AR AR ZERTOEN -
RZZE-NF=RAR=+—H ' BRRH
B A P 2 B¢ 38 /&5 1878 16 4,688,000 7T ( —
T—tF  8) B A RRER RN AT
HEMRERANHRRERI - BREFO R
FIRSGEE —RER - WEER RS
i MBS A] B A SR AT IR AN TR B 1R - U
MR EEHRERRLENAEE - AR
EIET BRI - B8 % 56,706,000
T(ZZ—+%F : $%68,269,0007T) &
B 20,721,000t (Z T —t 5 : B
9,179,0007T) M B IR & 18 2 Bl KR T B &S
BEARAFRTFREH - HtEER
PAEER A RS -

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Taiwan of HK$286,776,000 (2017: HK$289,912,000),
HK$61,394,000 (2017: HK$68,269,000) and HK$20,721,000
(2017: HK$9,179,000), respectively, that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in those companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilized in the foreseeable future, except for
tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$4,688,000 (2017:
Nil) as at 31 March 2018 to the extent that it was probable that
future taxable profit would be available against which the unused
tax losses could be utilized. Included in unrecognized tax losses
are losses of HK$56,706,000 (2017: HK$68,269,000) and
HK$20,721,000 (2017: HK$9,179,000) that will expire within five
years and ten years, respectively, from the date the losses arose.
Other losses can be carried forward indefinitely.
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29 IRIERLIE (Z) 29.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

174

RIBHEEMEEOE - P BEABERIIH
SNERRAIEREETIREE R B
10%MEH - B —TENF-—A—Rg%
BWERR —_FTELF+-_A=+—HE
FREX B A o i B BN 3 T AE A
ERERFT AR IRL - BIA]REE A EIEA
HEBRE - REERFANERBES
5%5%10% °

AN - RIBEEBIFBIEG] - MEAE
RBRE IR 2 B S B RBUL20% M -
FHit - AEBERN QEXZNZENE
N EE A Y a A AR 3 2 BRS04
B o

R-Z-NF=ZA=t—H AXEEET
7A FR B K e A S O B B % R OR BA R BB M
EAME BN ERELENIE - A&
R EANEREERBESHOE
%10469120007{:(_7 +F B
867,929,0007T ) ° %uw ’EZ:?W%
REPKAERARAREDER -TEN
F—RA—HERIZEH -

RZZE-N\F=ZA=1+—H8  LEREMN
BRMELEZRBEKINKERRRE
E A B B 1 2 R AR E T FE R AR IR IR
BES HHB50,732,00070 (ZF—+
& : #%48,332,0007T) ©

AR A FE PR K 3 2 BB 3 A ] P 1S
B FE

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement was
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if
there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rates during the
year were 5% or 10%.

In addition, pursuant to Taiwan withholding tax regulations, a 20%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to non-resident
shareholders. Therefore, the Group is liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Taiwan in respect of earnings generated.

As at 31 March 2018, no deferred tax has been recognized
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China, of which the aggregate amount of temporary
differences has not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$1,046,912,000 (2017: HK$867,929,000). In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute their earnings accrued after 1 January 2008 in the
foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the investments in subsidiaries
established in Taiwan for which deferred tax liabilities arising from
withholding tax have not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$50,732,000 (2017: HK$48,332,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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30. & A 30.SHARE CAPITAL
BT oT) (HK$°000) 2018 2017
JEIE Authorized:
1,000,000,000H% & 3@ A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
FRE¥0.107T HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BEITREHAR Issued and fully paid:
630,531,6008% 630,531,600
—ZE—+%F :630,531,6000%) (2017: 630,531,600) ordinary shares of
T AR AR B 50.107T HK$0.10 each 63,053 63,053

31. R AE

31.SHARE OPTIONS

ARBCHEARERR AR E—F K
FAAZTOA(RABE )BT 2R
BERE L7 ERERT 8 ([ BT
E IR

RIFBRES - ARRESARBEG
EM2EAZNBEENRBEARAREH
BT B AR E P PTIZ RR S A5
IR o ARIRIE AR B h 2 BB A
THETRHAE AR ERRBERAE LR
RZKER -

BRI ZFHIBFEIT

(a) BW

HABRZSEARKEBEL S
AR B BT T LA 2B ke ED -

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 September 2014 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, invite any participants to take up options
to subscribe for fully paid ordinary shares in the Company subject
to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Share options
under the Share Option Scheme do not confer rights on the
holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The particulars of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.
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(b) EEEFRZEAA X
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(i) NEEEMA K B FATAIERBCR
HERZERBRRIZEGZ ATZ
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7
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FRIEAM XM IR R
) HEREMSCH A
BEERRRS

() EmaRF 2 EMHER -

\o

(d) EmRFB 2 ERMES -

SBRER EINE - 2E2ABRER—
(VAR VA= =R N e O E il 3= YN
2 2 ERIAF e
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Participants

()

(i)

(a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,
including any independent non-executive director)
and employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work
for,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Share Option Scheme) or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(iii) (a) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,

contractor or distributor of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services
in respect of business operations to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

(d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
or a company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

For the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the participants
shall include any company controlled by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

AFRITEBREE LR

RAF3HEE - &% 63,053,160
BB (FHER AR R B HEITHRA
10%) 8] F347 »

BUSEATERERS LR

PR AR B R AR AT 8l 2 R R R 1T HL B
S ERSEAEEFATZEAR
(BERLBEREE B L) RIEERE
FHEIRAQ BT E b RS At AT &1
BzBEhE(BRDEE B1TER
TR R TT{E 2 BB AR AR ) T DATT {50 s P 3%
TREGETZEBR ERNSEBAR
NEIEEITEBERML%

ARERERERBERR 2R

mREERE Y BESTTFR - s
NRAE BRI T EFTE T A& H
M °

BREETHEASEASE2REHR
(fmA\)

PR EBRER - ARFEEREE
FHEBEETFIVERE Z&EH
R(E) -

BEABREANESERARZAR

EREBEEZROZAE(2HEZA)
M+ARANBERIABEIELD - R
XENBREZOR - AMER1.00
JC °©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(g

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

A total of 63,053,160 ordinary shares are available for issue
which represent 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company to any participant (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding share options), in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise approved in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up
under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
such shorter period as the board of directors of the Company
determines at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors
of the Company will determine the minimum period(s), if
any, for which a share option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the
period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted
within forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer
was made. The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for
an option is HK$1.00.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(h) Basis of determining the exercise price of a share option

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a
share option shall be determined by the board of directors of
the Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of grant, which must be a
business day;

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share of the Company.

(i) Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme has a life of ten years commencing
on the Adoption Date.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed

during the year (2017: Nil). As at 31 March 2018, the Company
had no (2017: Nil) share options outstanding.
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32.1#%%E 32.RESERVES

AEBAFRERBEFENFRBLEED
R BHREAZEEESEDRRTE
5] o

RIBEGERRNE  DEEWMBNDBRAT
R BRIEE WA AR A RIZAR — 2D
BaENERE—TARE 2 EARFEET -
HEZEAFEEDZARER0%E -
AREFBETER - MBI
BERT AN HEE -

RIBFEHIMNEBECENPINGERLE
DEZEG - ARBRPEARE B
AABRMA BB ENEEEFE (LS
WRBIER 2 HER)  BEEZRRERE
HEEZHAMERS0%

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profit
after tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When
the capital reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to
50% of the capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve
may be utilized at anytime to offset any deficit.

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, the
Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a
portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which
are restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50%
of their registered capital.
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31 March 2018

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transaction

FAERBDEEDE - BENMERE
7] € 8%2,050,0007C(ZFE—+ 4 :
B 1978,00070 ) EHEAME - BFE &

During the year, non-current deposits for purchases of
items of property, plant and equipment of HK$2,050,000
(2017: HK$978,000) were transferred to property, plant and

B -

(b) MEZEBEKEEH

equipment.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

SFRBITER
Interest-bearing

(GEBFor) (HK$'000) bank borrowings
RZFE—+tFMA—H At 1 April 2017 73,422
MEBRSRE Changes from financing cash flows (50,000)
BhE R AR Finance costs 1,248
FIWEREIR S 2 BT FE Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (1,248)
YN B Foreign exchange movement 1,348
RZE—NF=A=+—H At 31 March 2018 24,770

34. REE
RBEHR B AERPEREREBEB A
BENT
(EBFT)

34.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

(HK$'000) 2018 2017

REGIRITORER - A

Guarantees given to banks, at the maximum,

RAEERGTREFIEEE for bank loans granted to customers to
REEERMIBITER purchase the Group’s products 38,385 30,452
RHAEITHER  ZABE - Guarantees given to a bank, at the maximum,
REERGE TER for guarantees provided to customers 2,516 876
40,901 31,328
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35 REMNVTH 35.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) fERHBEA

AEBRELEHORPFEES T
DERMERKEDE (B BRKRW
14K 15) - MEMRERTE 2 HEH
RNF—FERF - BEHK K
EXRABAXINRES - URBEER
ISR ERERESE -

R-Z—-NE=ZA=+—H &x&£H
BIR AT AR 2 TRl BH &
HAOFN Bz AR &P EWHERIEE
T ¢

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain parts of its owner-occupied
properties and investment properties (notes 14 and 15 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from
1 to 5 years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

(BB FT) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
—F R Within one year 18,447 26,135
E_FRERAF(BEEEMTE) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 12,663 27,537

31,110 53,672

R EEARAR 2018 F3H
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35. REHNZH (&) 35.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

182

(b) EREBEA

AEBRBELEHNOLFEEEETY
X MRERBRE -PE B
ERBMAEHERECHERRED
IINF—F2RHF  ZFERAFURK
—FE=F-

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H &&EH
REBEFAREEEHOI P2 AR K
DRENHEEFIRERERNT

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its properties, office equipment
and motor vehicles under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties, office equipment and motor vehicles
are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 5 years, 3
years to 5 years and 1 year to 3 years, respectively.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

CEEFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
—F R Within one year 3,259 1,390
FE-FRERF(BEEHEME) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 1,628 666

4,887 2,056

36. &IE

BT RMIEE35 (IR RGBT AE 2
S REEN REMROEAREWAT ¢

RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—H  BRAEH
RPBEAETREEM2TE  EROE
RBHE 2 BAFIER K #)E¥83,0007T
(ZZ—+4% : #%836,0007T) °

RZZBE-NF=R=+—H  BREE
EREERTBRAEZYDE  BEMR
B ERNERBHZIERERESHRD
BH¥T7,957,0007C ( T —+F : B
9,511,0007T ) °

RZEBE-NEFE=A=+—H0 xEFEHKX
SEREY T RTEUE{E AR A& B 752,000
T ( ZZ—+4F : ##981,000T ) °

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H

36.COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
35(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments,
which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the
construction works in industrial buildings in Mainland China
amounting to approximately HK$83,000 (2017: HK$836,000).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments, which
were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the purchase
of property, plant and equipment in Mainland China amounting to
approximately HK$7,957,000 (2017: HK$9,511,000).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had outstanding irrevocable
letters of credit amounting to HK$752,000 (2017: HK$981,000).
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37.BEALRZS 37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial

FA - RAFBBREEMHMTARENE
BN REBEBINTHREEATRS : statements, the Group also had the following related party
transactions during the year:

(a) ANEE LB ®32,738,0000T ( == (a) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to

—+ 4 : #B#30,658,0007T ) A —Hk
ERBINES HANEREERES
R #E -

o REBR-BERR - BR
BAEMORIDBRAR ([ERER
Y1) 2RI LAE B ¥ 1,509,000 7T
(ZZ—+tF : B¥1,1950007T) &
B 12,504,000 ( ZF—tF : &)
BERMHLME  BEMEE A
WEA € WA B #912,000L (= F
—+t 4 : B%864,0007T) © FA - Ut
ERXGMB/AEELZBERHHIFE
BERS - AEBFRINBERME K
WE - BB ERERKEES KA R
NAEERZEERRETREZIE
FOETT °

BEEL  BEALKLIREEREE
(BORARRBZESE) EREMFI—
HITBAL  GHENEREXAR
NERRAGHIBS0% 2 IXFEH - B
REBEXERAAHEEFARRR
Yz 2 BRI SR - P IAR BRI
RERAEBBEERR AR ET
RAFVAGRT AR BNBEAL -

HK$32,738,000 (2017: HK$30,658,000) from an associate
at prices and on terms mutually agreed by the Group and the
associate.

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials and property,
plant and equipment of HK$1,509,000 (2017: HK$1,195,000)
and HK$2,504,000 (2017: Nil), respectively, and received
rental income of HK$912,000 (2017: HK$864,000) from a
related company, Zhen Jian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“CC-SZ"). These transactions were also connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Group. Purchases of raw materials and property, plant and
equipment, and rental income from CC-SZ were on terms
mutually agreed by the Group and the related company.

Dr. Chen CHIANG, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin
CHIANG (each being a director of the Company), together
with parties acting in concert with them, control the exercise
of more than 50% of the voting power at general meetings
of Chen Chien Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds the
entire equity interest of CC-SZ. CC-SZ is therefore a related
company of the Group and also a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) REBEEEIE A B (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

(GEEFor) (HK$°000) 2018 2017
MEEERT Short term employee benefits 12,101 11,664
ZEZEEF Post-employment benefits 72 72

12,173 11,736
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—E-N\F=A=+—H 31 March 2018
38. 2 I ESNSE 38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
REpEEER - FAEERSR T EZERE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
m instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
SWEE Financial assets
BRREWRRE
Loans and receivables
(BE¥TFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
JEWE 5 R EBERR Trade and bills receivables 866,769 746,819
AR - TERFRIER Financial assets included in deposits,
Hih BRI SR & &E prepayments and other receivables 24,676 19,102
FE U LA T EBR R Finance lease receivables 36,234 46,268
SR TFR Pledged bank deposits 46,997 57,218
Re RIRITET Cash and bank balances 611,564 852,525
1,586,240 1,721,932
SRMEE Financial liabilities
DU SH B YR AR ETHE
Zema s
Financial liabilities
at amortized cost
(BE¥Fr) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
ERE S REERR Trade and bills payables 475,857 356,967
AEAE M AR Financial liabilities included
EstE2ERNSsRERE in other payables and accruals 104,495 87,594
STRIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 24,770 73,422
605,122 517,983
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0.EMTENAFERAFEER 39.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

EEBRERESMRITET - HFRTE
RZmEED - BEEZRA R ERERE
MERRZRBE D - BREEER - 5t
AR & ~ AR R B A B SRR A & Rl
BE  ERNESREBRRNX  GEAEME
NERMEAEENSRBBENUKLE R
TERNAFERERRERS 22
HRZETAREHAE R -

FEWE iR R B A E R E R 2 IFR
BEn  BRRITERZIERBE DA
KMEt AR RN RS R AEN SR A
BZIERBHEIOLFESEREBEU
s~ EERR MR TRIME 2 TRARE
ARG ZHMEFRBRRLR S REM G
8 HQPEEARmERS -

AEEZHBEFKEEETEMTARY
EFFENBERRERF - REREAH - B
BEBROMeRTANBEZYREE G
BEEABNEIEGARE - HELRH LA
EEHE -

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, the current portion of pledged bank deposits, the
current portion of trade receivables and finance lease receivables,
bills receivable, financial assets included in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade receivables
and finance lease receivables, the non-current portion of
pledged bank deposits and the non-current portion of financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals are estimated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities, which approximate to their carrying
amounts.

The Group’s finance team is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. At each reporting date, it analyzes the movements in
the values of the financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
reported to directors.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

40.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in
their entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of
the PRC

The following table provides a summary of bills receivable
that have been transferred in such a way that part of the

LIgEEE transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition,
together with the associated liabilities:
(B#For) (HK$'000) 2018 2017
SEREREE Carrying amount of assets that
BRTHE continued to be recognized 37,171 23,688
B ERmE Carrying amount of associated liabilities 37,171 23,688

RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H  *%H
MESETHERSECEE THEY
BEHRTEINETREZER(EE
R®])  AEBRMNILESHERNE
NESER - AAKREREEARR
Lok BREREEFENEZORR
Bt EREEIAEEZBRNMER
EEIBENEEBTEMNE SRR -
BER ASELEERBEERALE
EfHN  BRAEMEME =77
& HERIEASERE -
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As at 31 March 2018, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain local banks in the PRC (the
“Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Since the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risk relating to the Endorsed Bills, it continued to
recognize the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills
and the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the
endorsement, the Group does not retain any rights on the use
of the Endorsed Bills, including sales, transfer or pledge of
the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2018

40. HESREE(£E) 40.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(b) IERLBRNCERESHEE

(b) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their

WRIBF R E L RIEEE

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8 x&H
MEETHEDSEFNKREDELAS
#71,285,0007C( —Z—+4F : B
36,480,0007T) EEE THEEEFE
IRITES A TRIER (T4
REEZE])  UEBEMISEH
JERHENE SRR - KILEREE
SEENBERFAREAAA A —EA
ET@EA(ZE—kF: —@AER
ER) - RFPEZHEE - WRITX
FoRARIIBEREERBRFEAGE
MASEEER([FEL2HE]) - AR
SECERRRIBERESEREAH
KB AR I B R B - dut - B AR
IR RS ERENAMERE
BEREEENE SRR - REERF
BL2ERIEREERTBEREOZE
RIEERESEBENRTRBESRE
HEABERBASNEERDE - F
I FELEKIIEREERENR
FEITTEK °

FR - ARERBERUIERBER
& B R RER T e sl E 1R A
EW RSB ENF AR R
B2 - ZEENEFEFIMMAEL -

R EEARAR 2018 F3H

entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of
the PRC

As at 31 March 2018, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC
(the “Derecognized Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with
a remaining carrying amount in aggregate of HK$71,285,000
(2017: HK$36,480,000). The Derecognized Endorsed Bills
have a remaining maturity of 1 month to 10 months at the
end of the reporting period (2017: 1 month to 5 months). In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a
right of recourse against the Group if the banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). Since the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills, it has derecognized the full carrying amounts
of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills and the associated trade
payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognized Endorsed Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. Thus, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed Bills are not
significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognized any gain or
loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognized Endorsed
Bills. No gains or losses were recognized from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

41. cREMEEEERBUR 41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
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AEEXZERTABRRERENBRITHE
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KRk - SNERRE  EERRERBES
[k - BREZE R T A ER MBIEZ
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EEEE -
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SEBRIUERAREARBERR -
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FEEOMERRBERALR S - OB
MEREREE - SRR REARER A
BHFRE -

AEBBINEZ HRR - ZFRRBRRA
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POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables,
finance lease receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, accruals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating
interest rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure
closely and considers to take measures to reduce significant
interest rate exposure, if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net investments
in operations in Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales
and purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars
(“US$”), Renminbi (“RMB”), Japanese yen (“JPY”) and New
Taiwanese dollars (“NTD").

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure in
transactions denominated in US$, RMB, JPY and NTD and its
investments in Mainland China and Taiwan and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2018

41. cREMREEEERBR (&) 41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

SMEEELRE ()

TR PR 7N 6% [ B B Al i A 0 o 5 H R
(EFBHMEBRFTENBRTIHE
T ARE - BEARFEBEZRNEGIER
EEFNHRE(HREBEERARD

ATEED) -

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$,
RMB, JPY and NTD exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the

HMEE B 2 RRBE AR T

®in,CEd) i ORd)

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit

(BEEFor) (HK$’000) currency rate before tax
2018

i A REEE LA If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 394

i A REEB TR E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (394)

i ARSI FHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% (1,232)

MARBEETLRZE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) 1,232

fix B E¥E T AE If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (3,834)

s B BB T E If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 3,834

i e BEETLAE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (3,085)

W aBEETLRE If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 3,085

SMEEE R RREE AT R A

®mORL) GRS

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit

(GEEFor) (HK$’000) currency rate before tax
2017

A REHBTHAE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 12,525

i AR ST E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (12,525)

WA REEEITHAE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% (7,819)

MARBEHETEE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) 7,819

it B B8 T HHE If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (1,169)

fisl B BB T E If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 1,169

(DEIR=k I Fwan=| If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (2,978)

¥ a B E T E If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 2,978

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

41. cREREEEERBR (&) 41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

190
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POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty of a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation and the
Group thereby suffers a financial loss.

The credit limits of trade receivables and finance lease receivables
are determined and monitored by management on an ongoing
basis. In addition, at the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
unrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank balances and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Group is also
exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial guarantees,
further details of which are disclosed in note 34 to the financial
statements.

The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy parties.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables and finance lease
receivables are disclosed in notes 20 and 22, respectively, to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both
its financial instruments (e.g., trade and bills payables) and
financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables and finance lease
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
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41. SR EERERBE(Z) 41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

FEESER(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
REENTRHEBE(BFENABE)RHRE The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (including
HISR (L ERTHARITIB M 5RER) R EF B contingent liabilities) as at the end of the reporting period, based
DA on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
2018
=EAULER

=@AR +=@AR
HIRER More than

Less than 3 months and

3 months or less than @t
(EMFor) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months Total
R E 5 REHERX Trade and bills payables 434,129 41,728 475,857
AR ERAERR R Financial liabilities included in
EtaENemas other payables and accruals 104,495 - 104,495
FFERITEN Interest-bearing bank borrowings 24,770 - 24,770
RIELIRITOER - Guarantees given to banks, at the
AHEE - BIEER maximum, for bank loans granted
BTEFPIEEEARER to customers to purchase
EmNIEITER the Group’s products 38,385 - 38,385
RIELAIRITOER - Guarantees given to a bank, at the
RAHEE - BIEER maximum, for guarantees provided
BYEP to customers 2,516 - 2,516
604,295 41,728 646,023
EHEEBR AT 2018 Ff CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018 191
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2018

41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

HREBESERE(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
2017
=EAULER
=@AR +=@AR&
RIRER More than
Less than 3 months and
3 months or less than st
(BT or) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months Total
FERE S RERERER Trade and bills payables 322,010 34,957 356,967
O A A FEATBR RN K Financial liabilities included in
EztaENsatE other payables and accruals 87,594 - 87,594
FTEIRITEN Interest-bearing bank borrowings 73,422 - 73,422
RELIRITHOER Guarantees given to banks,
RONEE 0 AEER at the maximum, for bank loans
BTRPIEBEAREE granted to customers to purchase
EmfRTER the Group’s products 30,452 - 30,452
ML IRITHOER - Guarantee given to a bank,
BRONEEE - at the maximum, for guarantee
BEERGETER provided to a customer 876 - 876
514,354 34,957 549,311
EARERE Capital management

AEEEAEENTIZAEREERSE
FEEENE N MRFRENEAR L X
AST R R R AR E 12 = B R A
AR BR IR AR B R B T B T2 e B
HERRE - BRTIABEARE - K
SEHEFHER TRROBE - ARERE
EIEARSEETHER - BE_T—\F=H
=t—BAMT—tF=ZA=1+—BLLF
ER - ZEEAEEZBE  BRIIEF
W AL AR 2

B#1.675,542,0000( —F —H4F B
1,518,680,0007T ) ( Bl 42 7t &) & 2= Rk 487
BEE)ETEER AEBZBURBER
EFREBEAEL -

RIEEEARAR 2018 F

—

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2018 and 31 March 2017.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net
current assets of HK$1,675,542,000 (2017: HK$1,518,680,000),
which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2018

42.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
RABREHE RN BAMRKER D Information about the statement of financial position of the
T Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
(B For) (HK$°000) 2018 2017
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
RWE AR ZHE Investments in subsidiaries 725,995 689,092
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
HER %G Deposits and other receivables 862 813
RE RIBITET Cash and bank balances 11,684 18,826
mENEEAE Total current assets 12,546 19,639
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEmEMERMETAE Other payables and accruals 4,526 4,129
FTEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 24,770 50,000
MENB BT Total current liabilities 29,296 54,129
REEEFRE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (16,750) (34,490)
EEFE NET ASSETS 709,245 654,602
R EQUITY
(TR AN Issued share capital 63,053 63,053
Rt (h ) Reserves (note) 646,192 591,549
TS MET TOTAL EQUITY 709,245 654,602

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH
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42. XD BB BIRR R (E)

Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)

31 March 2018

42.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Miat - Note:
RARZ FEEWENT : A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
4l EAEE
BER #E
Share Capital REBEF
premium redemption Retained st
(BT ) (HK$°000) account reserve profits Total
RZZE—RFWMA—H At 1 April 2016 509,580 295 66,154 576,029
REE R R Profit for the year and total
ARF G4 2 S comprehensive income
for the year - - 48,307 48,307
HE-_ZT—E=A=+—HIt Final dividend for the year
FEZREBE(HE12) ended 31 March 2016 (note 12) - - (3,783) (3,783)
HE-_ZT—F=HA=+—HIt Special final dividend for the year
FEZHRIRBERE(MF12) ended 31 March 2016 (note 12) - - (20,177) (20,177)
FRERRS B(Hat12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - (8,827) (8,827)
R-ZE—+F=A=1+—8K At 31 March 2017
—E—+FmA—H and 1 April 2017 509,580 295 81,674 591,549
REERF K& Profit for the year and total
AEEFH2ERE comprehensive income for the year - - 110,130 110,130
HE-_Z—+F=A=+—HIF Final dividend for the year
FEzRBRE(ATIZ) ended 31 March 2017 (note 12) - - (16,394) (16,394)
HE-_Z—+F=HA=+—HIE Special final dividend for the year
FEZERRBRE(ATIZ) ended 31 March 2017 (note 12) - - (20,177) (20,177)
AR B (HTRE12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - (18,916) (18,916)
RZZE—NF=A=+—H At 31 March 2018 509,580 295 136,317 646,192

43. B WMREFR

HFBHRRER T \FA-+LH

REZ=REL -

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H

43.APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue
by the board of directors on 27 June 2018.
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2018

TRABIZ AR REEARUAFEAREE
EEELEAFEABRAEEEEFETIE
Mo ZHIBRR] - EFWRR - JIIHE KB

RAZFBHBRITE °

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

PANSESY ]
AL s EZEO
kg E Percentage
Place of BERITRA of equity
incorporation/ BWER attributable
DEREBE registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE
Held indirectly
SREMWAR D BR A F]® = =Rl 100 SHEE T EB K
Asian Plastic Machinery Company, Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Limited® ¥14&#50,000,0007T plastic injection
NTD50,000,000 moulding machines
Chen Hsong Europe B.V.®© Gl ik 100 THE B
Netherlands Ordinary Sale of
100,000B% 7T plastic injection
EUR100,000 moulding machines
B TEECRI) RE 3,000,000% 7T 100 BEME
BRAR®® ey N7 Us$3,000,000 Property holding
Chen Hsong Industrial Park PRC/
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 0 ® Mainland China
EREERAR AR EE TR E2T 100 SHEE T Ik
Chen Hsong Machinery Company, Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of

Limited

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

BERERRETRN®
75 #50,000,0007T

Non-voting deferred®

HK$50,000,000
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Principal Subsidiaries continued)
As at 31 March 2018

PANSES S|
AL s EZEDL
kg E Percentage
Place of EERITRA of equity
incorporation/ BIRER attributable
NS registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE(E
Held indirectly (continued)
Chen Hsong Machinery (India) ENfE T 100 EOREE
Private Limited® India Ordinary B K ELRE 4
ENE & 100,000 Import and sale of
Rs.100,000 plastic injection
moulding machines
and including
its spares
EHER(ZR)BRATOO® e 8,010,000t 100 SlERIHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery AR K Us$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
(Ningbo) Company, Limited® &) ® PRC/ of plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
BEEBORIDBERATDO O HE 17,130,000 7T 100 BUERHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen) PR K B US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® ® ® PRC/ of plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
EHEEWE RN AR AR = =Rl 100 BUENMIHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® ¥ & #165,000,0007T of plastic injection
NTD165,000,000 moulding machines
EEMERE ORI e 75 #24,000,0007T 100 B35 2 85 & B AR
BRATVEG G elEiily N HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and

Chen Hsong Mechanical and PRC/
Electrical Equipment Mainland China

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.®® ®

EEEEARAT 2018 F5H

sale of tie bars
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Principal Subsidiaries continued)
As at 31 March 2018

PANSESY S|
AL s Bz
kg E Percentage
Place of EERITRA of equity
incorporation/ BWER attributable
ATERE registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
Chen Hsong (Middle East) Fze® (EEaA(=] R liliha 100 SHE T 2B
A RE Ordinary Sale of
United Arab A 1,000,000 plastic injection
Emirates AED1,000,000 moulding machines
Chen Hsong Middle East Makine TEHEHE +HH B 250,000 100 SHE LB
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi® Turkey TL250,000 Sale of
plastic injection
moulding machines
BHEHECRINBERATLO® 8, 7% 10,000,0007T 100 THE A
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing el HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ plastic injection
Limited® ® ® Mainland China moulding machines
Chen Hsong South America BEfm BEmEER5721,000 100 SHE T B
Importacdo, Exportagéo Brazil R$5,721,000 Sale of
e Comércio de plastic injection
Equipamentos Ltda.® moulding machines
#BIL T B R [ B R B R hE 7,300,000% 7T 100 FUERIHE T B
BRAR® G 6 iy NS US$7,300,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection

Plastics Machinery Company
Limited® ®) ®

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH

Mainland China
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Principal Subsidiaries continued)
As at 31 March 2018

PANSES S|
AL s EZEDL
kg E Percentage
Place of EERITRA of equity
incorporation/ BIRER attributable
NS registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE(E
Held indirectly (continued)
BT EE E RS T HE 7,900,000 7T 100 BUE N SHE T
BRAF®®® FR B K US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection
Precision Machinery Company, Mainland China moulding machines
Limited® ® ®)
BILTEE R ERE HE 3,000,000% 7T 100 BGERIHERESE
BRARDE® FR B K US$3,000,000 Manufacture and
Intra-Italy Hydraulics PRC/ sale of
(Foshan Shunde) Company, Mainland China hydraulic motors
Limited® ® ®)
RYNBIERERBERAT@®® B 12,000,000 7T 100 SUENMHES M
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision FR B K US$12,000,000 Manufacture and
Equipment Limited® ® ® PRC/ sale of casting parts

Mainland China

Hret

(1) HERBRINGEELE -

(2) WRRBFINABREDRE -

(3) HERABRINGREDRE -

(4) ERZREERD B X REIRFUERE - &
BERRRE LIRERB SR EERN 58
YRS IR B AR 2 BigR o

(5) HEXARAMWEMHET -

(6) WEMBERREEUBMEIIFBBBRKE

FHAD R Pk 2ok & 5t AR F 75 AT B R A AR H A
BB R RERZ -

198 BIEEEBR AT 2018 Fi#f

Notes:

(1

(2)

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)

These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

This company is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture.

These companies are foreign invested enterprises.

The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights
to vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a
return of capital in a winding-up.

English company names are translated for identification purposes only.
Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not audited by

Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out
below.

RESULTS

Year ended 31 March

(BEMFor) (HK$'000) 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
& Revenue 1,667,879 1450,877 1247942 1,567,788 1,846,175
EHET (E518) Profit/(loss) from operating activities 127,025 77,037  (139,140) 43,908 104,762
WERA Finance costs (1,248) (1,385) (3,266) (4,966) (5,469)
AN Share of profits less

S FI R B 18 losses of associates 3,366 3,107 2,239 3,561 6,638

BRBATEF (F518) Profit/(loss) before tax
FTE# Income tax expense

129,143 78,759  (140,167) 42,503 105,931
(26,312) (27,406) (34,071) (23,703) (24,334)

AEE R, (EE) Profit/(loss) for the year

102,831 51,353 (174,238) 18,800 81,597

FERN Attributable to:
RABIEEFHE A Equity holders of the Company 101,877 51,485 (173,087) 20,356 81,368
PR RS Non-controlling interests 954 (132) (1,151) (1,556) 229

102,831 51,353  (174,238) 18,800 81,597

BE RERFERER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

R=FA=+—H As at 31 March

(E#ETFT) (HK$'000) 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
EERE Total assets 3,695,700 3,315,085 3,307,171 3,752,231 3,896,487
BEBE Total liabilities (812,720) (712,561)  (625,100)  (850,220)  (981,473)
FEIE R i Non-controlling interests (15,153) (12,601) (16,421) (18,341) (19,888)

2,867,827 2,589,923 2,665,650 2,883,670 2,895,126

RIFEEARAT 2018 FH
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REYEFE Particulars of Investment Properties

WZZE—-—NE=A=+—H As at 31 March 2018

i B REEAR HAOH

Location Existing use Type of lease

P I  HA
BRE R Industrial Medium
LTS
R =27 E
ARF 319 - 505% - 5257
ERTX%E
11-BiE » 12-BiE & 13-BiE

Block 11-B, Block 12-B and Block 13B
Chen Hsong Industrial Park
No. 31, 50, 52 Renmin Middle Road
Kengzi office
Pingshan New District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC
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ERSEEBERALTE
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

BEENRAR AR IEMARE13E155%
13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

E:E / Tel: (852) 2665 3222
{85 / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

#81ik / Website: www.chenhsong.com
EH] / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com
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